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The above—styléd céuse came on .for hearing on
the 20th day of May, 2013, at 10:00 a.m., before Judge
Kristi Lea Harrington, presiding over the General
Sessions Court for the County of Beaufort, when the
following proceedings were had and entered of record, to
wit:

PROCEEDINGS
' VOLUME I OF IV

(Defendant :is present with his counsel.)

THE COURT: All right, Counsel. For my
beﬁefit, give me your name.

MS. CONCANNON: Mary Concannon.

MR. SHELTON: Ben Shelton.

THE COURT: Good morning, Mr. Shelton.

MR. SHELTON: Good to see you.

MS. CAMPBELL: Good morning. Hi, I'm
Trasi Campbell. And that's T-r-a-s-i.

THE COURT: And, Ms. Campbell, you represent
Mr. Barrett?

MS. CAMPBELL: I do, your Honor. This is
Gerald Barrett, Jr.

THE COURT: And.I understand that you are
asking fof a continuance; is that correct?

MS. CAMPBELL: That is éorrect, your Honor.

I'1ll be happy to place that on the record at this time

Reported By:
Rolayne M. Volpe, CCR, RPR
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if you would like. .
THE COURT: 1I'd be happy to hear from you.
MS. CAMPBELL: Thank you, your Honor. I've

been representing Mr. Barrett since he was incarcerated

.on these charges, your Honor, which is, eight, nine

months now. Last Thursday, four or five days before
trial, I was -- a packet of information was dropped off
at my office by the State of South Carolina. And in
that packet of information and through a phone call with
the Solicitor, Ms. Concannon, it divulged to me at that
point she intended to introduce or to try to introduce
evidence\of Child Sexual Assault Accommodation Syndrome.

Upon receipt, of that packet of information from the

State, I began conducting research Thursday, Friday,

over the weekend, and it has come to my attention that I

believe, based on what I found, that if I do not request

-that the State provide an expert for Mr. Barrett on

those -- on that particular issue, that I will be
ineffective. So I am requesting-a continuance to allow,
basically, the State to provide an expert for

Mr. Barrett on -- on that particular iséue alone. It is
highly contested; it is highly debated. There are some
research articles that, .you know, label it and put it in
the area of junk science, and there are others that find

some credibility to it. And with no counter argument,

Reported By:
Rolayne M. Volpe, CCR, RPR
Official Court Reporter for the State of South Carolina
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I'm sort of left, in my 6pinibn, béing ineffective for
Mr. Barrett. Thank you.

THE COURT: All right. Ms. Campbell, if I
exclude that testimony, are you prepared to go forward?

MS. CAMPBELL: I am.

THE 'COURT: All right. Let me hear from you.

MS. CONCANNON: Thank you, your Honor. The
State is prepared to go forward. We did hand over that
info;mation tovMs. Campbell on Thursday. I would like
to add that, in the State's opinion, it is not grounds
for a continuance. It is well established in the area
of child sexual abuse cases. 1It's from the inception
of --

THE COURT: Tell me how the information was
presented.

MS. CAMPBELL: I received information from
Kendra Twitty, who is -- I'm going to attempt to qualify
as an expert in counseling child sexual abuse victims.

And she provided me with a brief synopsis of the child

‘sexual —-

THE COURT: How did she get involved in the
case?

MS. CONCANNON: She is with Hope Haven of the
Lowcountry, which conducts forensic interviewing in the

counséling of the child sexual victims.

Reported By:
Rolayne M. Volpe, CCR, RPR
Official Court Reporter for the State of South Carolina
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.THE COURT:- Has she been involved in this case?

‘This is a 2012 case; is that correct?

*MS. CONCANNON: She was the actual forensic
interviewer on Minor , the l4-year-old victim in
this ‘case.

THE COURT: Had'she‘—— had you provided
information regarding the videotape of the interview and
all of that prior to Thursday?

MS. CONCANNON: Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT: All-right. So this would, in
essence, be a supplemental report;:is that --

MS. CONCANNON: - .Yes, your Honor. The videotape
was provided earlier on in this case. And when I met
with Ms. Twitty, she was able to provide me with it. I
can hand you a copy of what we're mentioning if you
would like. |

THE COURT: What is the essence of the
testimony? -

MS. CONCANNON: She is going to testify, in

‘which I had told Ms. Campbell, as to the mental effects

that children who are victims of chiid sexual abuse
suffer such as delayed neporting, who they report to,
why they choose to report to these sort of individuals,
different affects regarding, not Minor in particular,

justAgeneral ~-— generalized what -- regarding these

: Reported By:
Rolayne M. Volpe, CCR, RPR _
Official Court Reporter for the State of South Carolina
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victims.

THE COURT: And has she testified in this court
before? Has she been qualified as an expert before in
Beaufort County?

MS. CONCANNON: Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT: I am not from Beaufort County, so I
am not familiar with- your advocacy centers and who may
testify. So that's important for me to know.

Ms. Campbell, you were aware that she was the
forensic interviewer?

MS. CAMPBELL: I am aware that Ms. Twitty
served as the forensic interviewer in this case. As
your Honor knows, I did file my motion to disallow
Kendra Twitty's qualification as an expert and the use
of the term "forensic interviewer" and any testimony
from Twitty that does not fall squarely within the
ruling in Kromah. And that would be a motion, I assume,
that we would hear if we were continuing this matter.

" So based on Kromah and based on the -- the
written report from Kendra Twitty that in no way
references Child Sexual Assault Accommodation Syndrome,
I would have no way of knowing that the State intended
to elicit that type of testimony from this particular
person. There was no -- no information at all that that

particular information was sought from that witness.

Reported By:
Rolayne M. Volpe, CCR, RPR
Official Court Reporter for the State of South Carolina
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THE COURT: What was tﬁe basis of her interview
with the victim?

MS. CAMPBELL: Well, Minor , at the time,
was 14. Kendra Twitty intefviewed her at Hope Haven.
And I watched the video, and I've read the -- the repdrt
from Kendra Twitty. And it is an outline of the |
allegations ip the case. It is a repetition of the same
story that was given repeatedly to -- af the initial
disclosure, at the interview wifh.law enforcement. And
everything particularly remained the same, obviously,
except that the times -- or the time of the one incident
bounced around. But there's'nothing in here --

THE COURT: All right.. Are you familiar with
Ms. Twitty? | '

MS. CAMPBELL: I know of her. I have never
been involved in a case with her in terms of taking a
case to trial with her. .

THE COURT: = You were aware that she was the
forensié intérviewer,in this case?

MS. CAMPBELL: I am aware of that, yes.

THE COURT: And, Ms. Campbell, you are aware

of, .basically, what a forensic interviewer does and

~their qualifications?

MS. CAMPBELL: I am aware of forensic

interviewers. I'm aware of Ms. Twitty and her work in

' Reported By:
Rolayne M. Volpe, CCR, RPR
QOfficial Court Reporter for the State of South Carolina
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previous cases. And I have not tried a child sexual
assault case subsequent to Kromah. And so in light of
that, my thinking and my perspective and the way I am
dealing with the case has changed, and Ms. Twitty.

THE COURT: All right. Counsel, let me hear.
from you.

MS. CONCANNON: I would just like to add in
response to Ms. Campbell;s reference to Kromah, it was
never in the State's intention to attempt to get

Ms. Twitty qualified as -- in the field of forensic

- interviewing. We know there's case law out there

against that.

In the supplement that I provided for

Ms. Campbell, it does state case law in which courts

have allowed forensic interviewers to be qualified as
experts in the field of child sexual abuse counseling
and treatment. And I do have a copy of that case for
your Honor if you would like to lock at it.

THE COURT: You may -- you may approach.  Tell
me what her qualifications are that you believe she can
be qualified as an expert.

(Document is handed to the Judge.)

MS. CONCANNON: Thank you.

Ms. Twitty has expertise -- well, as of

May 1lst of this year, she's conducted 986 forensic

Reported By:
Rolayne M. Volpe, CCR, RPR
Official Court Reporter for the State of South Carolina
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interviewers —- interviews of children ranging from 3 to

17 years old. She has expertise in trauma, focus
cognitive behavioral therapist, as well as a child
forensic interviewer, crisis intervention specialist.
She has a master of arts in clinical psychology from
Georgia School of Professional Psychology where she had
a 3.6 GPA. She also has a bachelor of science magna cum
laude, Ithaca.College in New York. She has been a
licensed -- she's a licensed professional counselor here
at the Hope Haven of the Lowcountry. Her professional
experience ranges from forensic interviewer/counselor,
in which she is specialized in interviews, does‘reports,
assessments to the officials who are investigating and
alleged child sexual abuse.. She has provided expert
testimony in child abuse in c¢civil, criminal, and federal
court hearings. - She conducts trauma assessment to
provide evidence-phased, trauma-focused, cognitive
behavioral therapy to Qictims of trauma and sexual abuse

and substance abuse. She has been, since 2010, a

- clinical supervisor and counselor in Bluffton at-

MindStream Academy. She has also -- she is a social and
emoticnal learning coordinator. She's had thaf position
from 2009 to 2010 at Charter School here in Beaufort.
She's a part-time daily therapist in Hope Haven,

forensic interviewer and counselor, ,and that is where

Reported By:
Rolayne M. Volpe, CCR, RPR
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she does specialized interviews making allegations of
sexual and/or physical abuse. She does the written
reports and assessments to officials. She provides
continuing education, training on mandated reporting of
signs and symptoms-of abuse, and breaking the silence to
professionals in the field of education and childcare.
She has assessed and provided treatment to the victims
of trauma sexual abuse and the like, and she does joint
victim as well as family counseling for these victims of
child sexual abuse.

THE COURT: All right. What training has she

specifically received as -- with respect to interviewing

‘children of child sexual assault?

MS. CONCANNON: Okay. Her training is as

follows: National Child Protection Training Center,

emergent issues in the forensic interviewing. That was
in Columbia -- these are her certificates that she has
completed -- as well as Finding Words Advanced Course

from the Children's Loss Center, forensic interviewing
and advanced level training, the National Children's
Alliance Academy of Investigative Inferviewing,
Professional Response Child Abuse Conference, Darknéss
to Light, Fifth Annual National Conference, South
Carolina Prevention of Child Abuse, Sexual Development

and Sexually Reactive Behaviors in Children. She

Reported By:
Rolayne M. Volpe, CCR, RPR
Official Court Reporter for the State of South Carolina
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presented in that four years, as well as sexually
problematic adolescence training. Her training goes
back tec 2000 and is continued up until 2012, it looks
like.

THE COURT: Ms. Campbell, are you asking
for -- what are you asking for specifically?

MS. CAMPBELL: I'm specifically --

THE COURT: TIs it a continuance for the entire
case, a continﬁance to review, opportunity to speak with
the witness; what is it that you're requesting?

MS. CAMPBELL: I am specifically asking for a

continuance to obtain the services of an expert in the

field of Child Sexual Assault Accommodation Syndrome,

which is the specific evidence that the State seeks to

introduce through Kendra Twitty that I was informed of
on Thursday -- last Thursday.

I wound point but\that we're ready to go

forward in every other respect, 'as I was on Wednesday

when I fbrwarded, you know, my motions and I was ready
to go. This added a different layer to.it. I had to do
my research. As I did.it, it sayé to me right here that
I am ineffective i1f I do not request an expert to
counter the evidence that the State seeks to introduce.
And so that is what I'm doing on behalf -of my clieht.

It would give me an opportunity to obtain the services

Reported By:
Rolayne M. Volpe,. CCR, RPR
Official Court Reporter for the State of South Carolina
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of an expert, to speak with that expert, and have them
testify at Mr. Barrett's trial.

And -- and the basis for this is, is that, as
far as I can tell, a number of courts, two Florida éases
in particular, have overturned convictions where Child
Sexual Assault Accommodation Syndrome was introduced as
evidence in that case. It's a very -- it's a very
dangerous type of testimony to put in without me being
allowed to counter it with a professional myself.

THE COURT: Solicitor, tell me what child
accommodation syndrome is.

MS. CONCANNON: Your Honor, it goes into the
mental trauma that'child victims of sexual abuse could
suffer and do suffer -- do suffer. It just shows that
it's the most frequent observed behaviors that these
victims partake in and represent and what the sexual
abuse does for them in the mental aspect. For example,
it looks at behavioral characteristics such as the
secrecy; the helplessness these children suffer;
entrapment; accommodation; delayed, conflicted, and
unconvincing disclosure; as well as retraction, which
are things that are common in all child sexual abuse
cases. And it goes back to at least 1983 when this
study came out.

MS. CAMPBELL: May I speak, your Honor?

Reported By:
Rolayne M. Volpe, CCR, RPR
Official Court Reporter for the State of South Carolina
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THE COURT: You may.

. MS. CAMPBELL: Thank you. One cf the things
that I was able to -- to discover in my research over
the. weekend about this is that Roland‘Smith [sic] did
put forth this position in 1983. And since that time,
basically the Courts are looking at it and saying the
accommodation syndrome does not obviously detect sexual
abuse. It makes the assumption that abuse has occurred
and it -- and then attempts to explain the child’'s
reactions to it. And so the accommodation syndrome, not
proving abuse, and it -- it doesn't constitute
substantive evidence. And that is very problematic when
the State is seeking to put in front of the jury a
person who is going to be testifying from the position
that abuse occurred. And even though the State says,
Well, we're not going to make it specific to Minor , you
can't deny that that's the interpretation the jury would
take from that testimony. Thank you, your Honor.

THE COURT: All right. When is the -- when do
you plan to have the expert testify?
~ MS. CONCANNON: Ms. Twitty was going to be here
this afterncon to handle this as a pretrial matter. Her
acfual testimony, I would hope, tomorrow.
THE COURT: All right. I am not -- at this

point, I am not granting your motion for a continuance

. Reported By:
Rolayne M. Volpe, CCR, RPR
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based upon the fact that she was named as the
interviewer. It may be that, based upon when she comes
in for the other pretrial matters related to the
videotape and some of the other testimony, that I will
make a determination otherwise; but at this point, we
are going forward on this matter. Note your exception
to my ruling for the record.

Anything'furthef before we begin -- -before I
begin qualification?

MS. CONCANNON: Not from the State.

MS. CAMPBELL: Just one further matter, your
Honor; in terms of the discovery. -Additionally, the
State provided on Thursday jail phone calls to the
Defense in the neighborhood of hundreds of hours worth
of listening that I would need to do to that -- to those
calls. And the State indicates to me that they've
listened to all of them. Obviously, I was occupied, for
my client, investigating this issue that was given to me
on Thursday, and this discovery was dumped at the.office
also on Thursday. And I will tell you for the record,

I've not listened to the jail phone calls. I've not had
THE COURT: - All right. Do you plan to use the

MS. CONCANNON:. I plan to use the one phone

Reported By:
Rolayne M. Volpe, CCR, RPR
Official Court Reporter for the State of South Carolina

17



18

N -

10

11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

‘ ‘ Page 59
State versus Gerald T. Barrett, Jr.-
- . Jury Trial, Volume I of IV

(The Judge steps off the bench at 1:31 p.m.)
(Lunch recess.) |
PRETRIAL MATTERS
THE COURT: Whenever you are ready,
Ms. Campbell.

MS. CAMPBELL: Thank you, your Honor. Your

Honor, at this time, on behalf of my client, I would

make a Motion to Quash the three indictments in this
case. I'll be referring to my handwritten motion during

my argument to the Court briefly here, and then I'll be

. making my motion. And the three indictments from August

23rd, 2012, Defendant's exﬁibits, along with my copies
of the three indictments from March 28th, 2013,
Defendant's exhibits, and then the last exhibit the
Defendant would put into the record of this case is a
copy of the -- dated February 20th, 2013, Notice of
Defendant's Alibi to cover the times stated in the three
original indictments. |

The Défendant alleges in this case, that .the
State of South Carolina, upon notice of his alibi,
amended the indictments to reflect different dates. We
would conténd that these indictments that we are here on
today are not,suffiéient as to -- and good as to date
and time because the State has ésSentially moved the

date and prevented Mr. Barrett from presenting fully a
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defense in this case. The original indictments, your
Honor, were handed down August 23rd, 2012. As the
record will reflect, we gave notice of alibi in February
2013.. vThe first indictment, 2012-1631, stated that the

offense occurred on March 19th; not "on or about,™ but

March 19th. That day, and that day alone, he was on

notice to defend against. In the kidnapping indictment,
2012-1632, it stated, "on or about March 19th, 2012,"
which gave a little bit more leeway. And then the last
indictment, 2012-1633, simply had no date at all.

The Defendant was provided discovery by the
State of South Carolina. And in that discovery, is a

Minor And

very clear, handwritten statement by
in that statement, pursuant to questioning by Kendra
Twitty of Hope Haven and being interviewed in this case,
she wrote that the offense occurred two days after
Saint Patrick's Day. And we would contend that Saint
Patrick's Day is a little bit like Christmas Day or New
Year's .Day; these are days that everybody knows when
they are. They don't float around. 1It's -- Saint
Patrick's Day is March 17th; Christmas, December 25th;
New Year's Day, January 1st.

So if you are told by Minor that she was

sexually assaulted -- as the inVestigator was -- two

days after Saint Patrick's Day, then you obtain warrants
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for March 19th, which he did. ' The warrants in this case
directed the Defendant to March 19th as the day upon the
allegation. | |

As we proceeded to trial and we prepared 5ur
defense, we sent notice to the State. And as we were
coming up to the term of court where we were to have our
trial, I, as Mr. Barrett's defense counsel, received a
telephone call from the Assistant Solicitor Patrick Hall
that indicated he ‘was fléshing out the victim's story
and that it would appear to him that the date was, in
fact, éaint Patrick's Day parade on Hilton Head. . And
with that information, he was going to seek amending the
indictmenfs. I.cautioned‘him that I had grave concerns
about that action; that I felt that the change in 'her
statement, I suppose, should have been documented in
some manner. It has not been done to‘déte, that I'm
aware of, to corroborate her changing‘the.daﬁe' .
subsequent to the solicitor's fleshing out of her story.

The Solicitor's Office then toock the
indictments to another grand jury and changed the dates
based on a statement from Shawn Ward -who indicates in

sort of a re-interview, although he was highly

-intoxicated on Hilton Head Island's Saint Patrick's Day,

that he had some memory of Mr. Barrett being at his home

that evening.

Reported By:
Roclayne M. Volpe, CCR, RPR
Official Court Reporter for the State of South Carollna




B ow N

S n

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 62
State versus Gerald T. Barrett, Jr.
Jury Trial, Volume I of IV

There has been, to my knowledge, no
re-interview of Minor in terms of pinning her
down on a different date. And even if there were at
this point, Mr. Barrett argues to this Court that
this -- these actions taken subsequent to his notice of
alibi deny him of due process, fairness, and justice in
this courtroom. And he seeks the remedy of quashiﬁg
these indictments and full dismissal with prejudice for
the actions taken subsequent to his notice of alibi by
the State of South Carolina, and we feel that it would
be only fair and just and equitable remedy for the
Defendant at this point in these ﬁroceedings.

And if I may, your Honor, I would like to
approach and mark my exhibits for Mr. Barrett at this
time with the court reporter. I've got them pre-marked.

THE COURT: You may.

MS. CAMPBELL: And for the record, the Motion
to Quash the Indictments is Defendant's Exhibit 1.

The 16 -- excuse me, 2012-1631, True Bill date
August‘23rd, 2012, Defendant's Exhibit 2.

'2012-1632, True Bill date August 23rd, 2012,
Defendant's Exhibit 3.

2012—1633, Defendant's Exhibit 4, True Bill
date August 23rd, 2012.

Defendant's Exhibit 5, 2012-1631, True Bill
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date March 28th, 2013. »

Defendant's Exhibit 6, 2012-1632, True Bill
date March 28th; 2013.

.True bill -- excuse me,’ Defendant's Exhibit 7,
2012-1633, True Bill date March 28th, 2013.

And last is Defendant's Exhibit 8, which is

Defendant's Notice of Intention to Offer Alibi Defense

pursuant to Rule 5.

Thank you, YOur Honor.

(Defendant's Exhibit Nos. 1—8imarked for
identification.)

THE COURT: Ms. Concannon?

MS. CONCANNON: Thank-you, your Honor. The
State would respectfully diSagrée with Ms; Campbell'é
motion. The indictments'were amended by a finding from\
the gfand jury which are secret proceedings. And the
only allegations that have been altered in the
indictment or amended is the date that the offense
occurred. It now gives an.on or about date which also
encompasses the original date. Ms. Campbell stated that
initially my victim indicated that it happened on .
St. Patrick's Day. " Well, to a l4-year-old girl that has
been sexually assaulted, she equated St. Patrick‘s.Day
with when it was celebrated. And the Hilton Head‘parade

happened to fall on a Sunday; and the year of this
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Hilton Head parade, it was on a Sunday, the 19th, after
Saint Patrick's Day. She did not even know that Saint
Patrick's Day was a specified day. She equated it with
when it was celebrated. And for a criminal sexual
assault case regarding the one that we have at bar
today, the date is not an element of the offense
charged.

The factual allegations did not change at all.
It was always the same place, the same victim, the same
sort of sexual battery. The only thing that did -- was

amended was the day and how it's a range instead of a

specific date. I do have a case law, State v. Wade,
that specifically touches on sex crimes and how date is
not an element of the offense charged. I do not have a
prepared formal written memo for you. I just received
Ms. Campbell's today, but I can prepare one for you.

THE COURT: Anything further?

MS. CONCANNON: Nothing further from the State,
your Honor.

MS. CAMPBELL: - Your Honor, could I reply
briefly?

‘"THE COURT: You may.

MS. CAMPBELL: Thank you. In terms of
the ~- the —-- of Minor ' date situation, the original

allegations placed this encounter occurring two weeks
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right before the end of school, which is two months

from Saint Patrick's Day. And -- and then, as I said,
subsequent to this»interview and the effort to pin down
precisely a date, in her own handwriting, subsequent to
this detailed interview, they decide upon two days after
Saint Patrick's Day. Regardless, that's March 19th, and
that's the date we prepared nine months -- eight to nine
months to defend against. And to then move the date --
still again, no discovery to the Defendant as to the
victim's version of moving the date, just: this

Shawn Ward person -- we feel is unfair and unjust.

Thank you, your Honor.

. THE COURT: All right.  As you. know, an
indictment is a notice document. The purpose is to
state with sufficient certainty and particularity to
enable the Court to know what judgment to pronounce and
for the Defendant to know what he is called upon to
answer and whether he mey plead er what happens if there
should be a conviction and whether it apprises the |
Defendant of the elements of -the offense that are
intended to be charged. The test is utilized to
determine the sufficiency of an indictment. rAnd we'll
just use the analogy that it's an overly broad time.
pefiod since there was -- the original indictments

indicated a one-day time frame and now there's a March
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11th through March 19th.

Is the time a material element of the offense
and whether the time period covered by the indictment
occurred prior to the return of the indictment by the
grand jury? Bésed upon the information that has been
presented from the State as to why fhe/time frame had
been changed from a particular date, while I understand
the analogy to Christmas that it is a particular date, I
am not conviﬁced that Saint Patrick's Day, because it is
typically celebrated on different days when there is a
celebration of avparade or something of that nature, not
always celebrated on March l7£h. As to a l4-year-old,
I'm not sure that that understanding should be imputed
to indicate that perhaps the State has done something to
obviate your alibi witness.

Based upon the testimony -- or the indication
that why it was amended, the fact that it was amended
approximately two months ago, I deny your Motion to
Quash the indictments.

MS. CAMPBELL: Thank you, your Honor.. Shall I
proceed to the next motion?

' THE COURT: Let's see what we have -- a Motion
to Quash indictments and then a Motion to Sequester
Witnesses. Any objection?

MS. CONCANNON: Not to sequester witnesses,
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your Honor.

THE COURT: "Motion to Sequester Witﬁesses is
granted. ' |

MS. CONCANNON: I did want to add one thing for
the record, your Honor; My'apoiogies. The parade was
the 11lth. "So Saint Patrick's Day was the 17th.. The
initial date was the 19th. T just wanted to correct
myself on the record. I had said the parade was the
19th, but the parade was the 11th,.

THE COURT: Which is what you amended your
Indictment to be? |

MS. CONCANNON: Right. When I spoke, I said

the 1%th.

THE COURT: All right.‘ Thank you.

All right. Ms. Campbell, the next one that I
have on your list pertains to a -- pertains to the list
that you had filed is the use of the video evidence.

MS. CAMPBELL: Thank you, yoﬁr Honor. 1It's my
understanding after speaking to the prosecution that
they are nét intending to introduce the video evidence
in this case, and, therefore, that motion would not be
necessary.

MS. CONCANNON: And Ms. Campbell”s,corfect. We
don't intend to use the forensic’ interview.

THE COURT: The video?
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MS. CONCANNON: The video, correct.

THE COURT: Thank you. So are you withdrawing
that motion, Ms. Campbell?

MS. CAMPBELL: I would withdraw. It will not
be necessary.

THE COURT: Thank you.

MS. CAMPBELL: The next motion, if I may, would

be -- would relate to the State's intended use of 404 (b)
Lyle evidence.

THE CCOURT: All right.

MS. CAMPBELL: And I believe that the State
would be in a position to put up what they intend --

THE COURT: I just want to see what is
remaining becausée I anticipate that's going to be a
lengthy one.

MS. CAMPBELL: The other motions that I have
relate to Kendra Twitty. And I did file the written
motion. I provided the State with a copy of that -- my
objections to that. And then the qualification of
Kristin Dalton as an expert, I would have a motion on
that. And then --

THE COURT: Do you plan to qualify Ms. Dalton
as an expert?

MS. CONCANNON: I do. Not --

THE COURT: In what area?
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MS. CAMPBELL: Your Honor, the next motion
on -- on my anticipéted pretrial motion list is the
Motion to Disallow the Qualification of Kendra Twitty as
an Expert and to disallow the use of the terminology
"forensic interviewer." And I -- I did take that,
additionally, to diéallow her testimony in its entirety.
I rely on my motion -- handwritten motion that I
prepared and sﬁbmitted to your Honor.

I'm not reaily sure the best way to handle this
except that I do -- I do believe the Statevintends to
have her testify outside the parameters of Kromah and --
which would be more than date, time, and circumstance of
the interview; any pérsonal observations of the child's
behavior or demeanor; and é statement as to events that
occurred within the interviewer's personal knowledge. I
think it's fair to say Kromah cautions all of us when it
comes to this terminology of someone being qualified as
a forensic interviewer and that it is a misnomer. And
if the‘State is going to try to put Kendra Twitty on the
stand and have her qualified as an expert, we object to
that. Andlwe object to the use\df therterm "forensic
interviewer." Thank you.

MS. CONCANNON: Thank you, your Honor. The
State does not intend to qualify her as an expert as a

forensic -- in forensic interviewing. We are cognizant
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of the Kromah case. We know you can't do that.

I handed up earlier State v. Shumpert which
indicates that Kendra Twitty —-- the Court in that case
allowed the expert, who happened to also be a forensic
interviewer, to be gqualified as an expert in child
sexual abuse counseling and treatment or a child's
sexual abuse trauma recovery.

Ms. Twitty, she is here as well for any
testimony, that the Court may need for pretrial matters.
She does not intend to testify specifically about
Minor . She intends to testify -- to testify about her
findings in her field as an expert regarding children
who are victims of trauma and sexual abuse cases.

THE COURT: How does that not fall into what
Kromah warned against?

MS. CONCANNON: In Shumpert, they weren't
qualified as forensic --

THE COURT: That's wasn't my question.

(Respite.)

THE COURT: -So you're going to call her, and
she's not going to testify as to the results of her
findings?

MS. CONCANNON: She is not going to be specific
to Minor interview and her interactions with Minor --

THE COURT: What's the relevance to her
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testimony?

MS. CONCANNON: Well, Minor wiil be able to
testify as to what she did after the sexual abuse
occurred. And Kendra's testimony is just shows -- it
is the State's intention to have Kendra testify that
different patterns of behavior are commonplace in child
sexual'ébuse victims.

THE COURT: rYou‘re objecting to that testimony,
Ms. Campbell? _ '

.~ MS. CAMPBELL: I am objecting to it, your
Honor. Again, I -- I've read Kromaﬁvagain, and -- and T
have a firm belief that if Ms. Twitty wants té testify
as a.child sexual abuse counseling aﬁd trauma expert,
that's not relevant to this case. That what she did in
this case was she interviewedemor_ . And the
parameters of that interview'are limited by Kromah, and
she is now limited to saying that the time and date and
the circumstances of her interview, what she observed

Minor . '
' behavior or demeanor, and she has no

about
personal knowledge of the allegations, so =--

THE COURT: Well, you would agree that

Kromah -- that list -- Kromah specifically says that

" they're not supposed to-be -- intended to be exhaustive.

MS. CAMPBELL: Right.

THE COURT: .All right.
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MS. CAMPBELL: We would'éubmit that "talking
about the fact that -- I believe it would sound
something like this: You know, in my experience, and,
you know, child sexual abuse victims will delay

reporting. And they delay reporting because of A, B, C,

.and D. And then because they delay reporting, you know,

it doesn't mean you shouldn't believe them.

And that sounds like vouching. I mean, that
sounds like making -- supporting up or bolstering the
fact that it's okay. She waited five months. That's
okay because every other child abuse victim -- or many
don't report immediately. She --

THE COURT: But shouldn't she be allowed to
testify as to, perhaps, some of the reasons why sexual
abuse victims don't immediately disclose without talking
about whether or not it impacts their credibility? I'm
assuming that's what you want, Counsel?

MS. CAMPBELL: That is what I'm asking -- oh,
I'm 'sorry.

MS. CONCANNON: Yes, your Honor.

THE -COURT: That is what -- what you want to
limit her testimony to.

‘

MS. CONCANNON: She is capable of testifying to

r

reasons some children react the way they do regarding --

after they are a victim of the sexual assault. Those
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are included, but aren't limited to, the secrecy, the
delayed disclosure, who they confine their disclosure
to, as well as any conflicting testimony such as the -
dateé. In this issue, she's just going to talk about
the mental effectfthat'thé sexual abuse can have on
child sexual ébuse yictims, as well as any retraction
that could possibiy,take blace in these cases.

THE COURT: Well, is she going to testify that
this pafticular victim suffered that trauma, and that's
why she's delayed reporting?

MS. CONCANNON: She's testifying as an -- if
she's deemed an expert, as a general opinion.

THE COURT: Has she interviewed the child?

MS. CONCANNONE She did interview'MmOr when
this initially happened.

THE COURT: And based upon her interview, was
she able to base her observation upon hér personal
observation of the child?

MS. CONCANNON: I'm confused with your
queétion. Regarding the interview or --=

THE COURT: Where is she -- she's just drawing

‘inferences out of --

MS. CONCANNON: Based on her --
THE COURT: -- Textbooks?.

MS. CONCANNON: Based on her dealings with
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900-and-some-odd intefviews she's ‘done, the training
that she has been to, the léctures, and the continued-
education that she has gone to.

THE COURT: Why can't she testify as to her
personal observation and based upon that personal
observation and her understanding, based upon: the
demeanor of the child, that'this is consistent with her
understanding as an expert of why the child may have not
disclosed in a timely fashion?’ |

MS.. CONCANNON: The State had initially just
intended on using her as a general -- as the general
category, staying away from Minor specific interview
because of Kromah. I know that Kromah gave out
some —-- some things that the forensic interviewer could

testify to. But I believe that State v. Shumpert is

more on key, allowing her to testify to the child sexual
abuse counseling and treatment and how those.children
reéct.

THE COURT: But isn't Kromah a more recent
case? A

MS. CONCANNON: Yes, your Honor. This was --
Shumpert is '93.

THE COURT: So would you agree that Kromah .
is more up-to-date and now gives a guideline and

articulates, perhaps limits, the general testimony of an
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expert without personal observation of-the child?

MS. CONCANNCN: Yes. .

THE COURT: Then why are we having this
discussion? - | ‘

Ma'am, I do not know who you are in the burple
on the fronf row, bﬁt;I am not calling out any one of
you on the front ‘row again. I find nothing_funﬁy about
what 1is going on ét-all.‘ I do noﬁ;need_angexplanation.
I have observed the four of you throughbuf the festimony
of the two previous witnesses, and I find it very
inappropriate, very inappropriate. This .individual is
facing very serious charges, and I want everyone in this
courtroom to understand the serious nature. If you
can't conduct YOurself accordingly, then you need to .
leave thé cou;trqom.' Please take the sunglasses off
your head. Thank you. _

MS. CONCANNON: Your Honor, could I have one
minute, please?

THE COURT: You can take all the time you need.

(Respite.). ‘

MS. CONCANNON: The State's understanding of
Kromah is that Kendra Twitty would not be able to
testify to bolster the credibility of Minor . She could
not testify regardingvthat. We have no intention of

asking questions or eliciting any testimony regarding

Reported By: -
Rolayne M. Volpe, CCR, RPR
Official Court Reporter for the State of South Carolina



s W N

~ o U

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 123

State versus Gerald T. Barrett, Jr.
Jury Trial, Volume I of IV
the truthfulness of Minor testimony. She can, though,

lend credibility to her allegations, and that is where
the child sexual Abuse Accommodation Syndrome comes in
and that's where the general findings of child sexual
abuse victims comes into play with her expertise in
those. We have no intention of her speaking
specifically to the credibility of Minor  and I think
that's where'maybe I got confused over why it's a
generalized testimony as opposed to specifics.

THE COURT: All right. Anything further?
Anything further?

MS. CONCANNON: She's not going to give an
opinion as to whether she believes Minor was telling
the truth or not telling the truth.

MS. CAMPBELL: Your Honor, and just so the
record is clear, I believe this is sort of a companion
situation here as it occurs to me now, that this is the
Child Sexual Assault Accommodation Syndrome festimony
that they're trying to -- to elicit from Kendra Twitty,
the interviewer at Hope Haven, ‘and I put on the record
earlier, that we -- we objected to that.. And the basis
for that objection's already on the record. We were
only notified of it Thursday. We have not had time to
preparel We feel that if that is the -- going to be the

situation, if she's going to be qualified as an expert,
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as the State says, child sexual abuse counseling and

trauma, which means she wants her to testify about

raccommodation syndrome, then we do object. And not only

just on Kromah, but because we -- we haven't had the

opportunity to obtain our own expert. Thank you, your

Honor.
. THE COURT: Your response to that?

MS. CAMPBELL: Thank you, your Honor. I
think my focus mainly on Shumpert was because that
was an expert ih the field of child sexual abuse
counseling. Kromah focuses on forensic interviéwing.
Kendra Twitty's pur?oée of testimony is not to testify
specifically to the truthfulness of Minor = . That was
never our intention. Our intention is her observations
followed by the genefalities that she's observed in her
training, her day-to-day life as a counselor of sex
abuse victims. |

THE COURT: All right.. And that is the
testimonyrthat Ms. Campbell is objecting to that was not
bresented, so let me hear you-on that.

M3S. CONCANNON: Regarding:the child sexual
Abuse accommodation Syndrome?

THE COURT: Yes.

MS. CONCANNON: Kendra Twitty would just

testify regarding this. It's been around since the
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1980s. The gist deals with the behavioral patterns that
are consistent in victims -- child victims of sexual
abuse. It talks about their retraction, their secrecy,
who they disclose to, when they disclose, delayed
disclosure, just any behavioral mental aspects that come
along that have been seen in numerous victims of child
sexual abuse.

THE COURT: What abouﬁ not providing the
testimony or the information to the Defense until two
days before trial?

MS. CONCANNON: I actually gave it to
Ms. Campbell on Wednesday. It -- if's the State's
opinion that this is just a general-held argument that
these counselors would testify to. It's not some new
smoking gun that we just came up with. It's been around
since fhe early '80s. It's commonly'testified to
regarding child victims of sexual abuse consistent with
delayed reporting, retraction, who they disclose to,
when they disclose, why they disclose, and any sort of
helplessness or secrecy that may follow their -- the
actual sexual abuse.

THE COURT: All right. She's outside?

-MS. CONCANNON: She is.

THE COURT: Ali right. Let me hear -- and I

just want to -- a very -- as to what you just stated,
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that's all I want to hear about.

MS. CONCANNON: Okay.

THE COURT: Thank you.

THE DEPUTY CLERK OF COURT: Please raise your
right hand, and put your left hand on the Bible.

(The oath is administered by the Deputy Clerk
of Court, and the witness answers as follows:)

THE WITNESS: I do.

THE DEPUTY CLERK OF COURT: Please be seated.

THE BAILIFF: = State your full name and spell
your last name for the court reéorter. And speak right
into the microphone.

THE WITNESS: My name is Kendra Twitty. Did
you say spell it?

THE COURT: Spell your last name.

THE WITNESS: It's T-w-i-t-t-y.

MS. CONCANNON: Thank you, your Honor. Would
you like Ms. Twitty to briefly go through her background
pfior to getting into --

THE COURT: Do you have any objection as to her
qualifications as an interviewef and --

MS. CAMPBELL: For fhe purposes'of‘this
hearing, no. We can proceed with her being qualified.
She's -- interviews. these children all the time at Hope

Haven. Primarily concerned with this accommodation
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syndrome --

THE COURT: All right. I heard her background
earlier today, so you agree that, in essence, that's the
background?

MS. CAMPBELL: I agree.

THE COURT: For the purposes of this hearing?

MS. CAMPBELL: Correct.

THE COURT: We're here -- you're on the
stand for just a very limited purpose, all.right,
depending on what happens in my ruling. We're going
to go through your qualifications, but I understand, in
a very general sense, what your background is. We're

here just about the child accommodation syndrome. All

"right?

MS. CONCANNON: Thank you, your Honor.
KENDRA TWITTY,
having been first duly sworn by ﬁhe Deputy Clerk of
Court to tell the truth, the whole truth, and nothing
but the truth, was examined and testified upon her oath
as follows:
DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MS. CONCANNON:
Q Ms. Twitty, can you briefly tell the Court your
knowledge about the Child Sexual Abuse Accommodation

Syndrome; how long you've known about it, and the
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general characteristics of what it involves?
;N Sure. I -- in my trainings as a counselor

working with children with sexual abuse, was trained
first on the Child Sexual Abuse Accommodation Syndrome
starting in 2000. 'And so for the 13 years that I've
been working with children, the accommodation syndrome
is something that I have taken into consideration.
Pretty much,'it's a way of adults understanding --
understanding what children go through when they're

sexually abused and how. children handle themselves

in an abnormal situation.

Q What are some of the characteristics associated
with victims of child sexual abuse?

A There's five associations as far -- or phaseé
or compohents: secrecy 1is one; helplessness is oné;,
entrapment and accommodation is one; delayed disclosure
on -- delayed-disclosure,-noﬁconflicting or unconvincing
disclosure; and fefraction or recantation would be one
as well. And I'm —— I may be missing -- no. I think.
that's it.

Q In your experience, are all victims of child

sexual abuse, do all of them have these characteristics?

A Not necessarily.
Q Do some of them have a combination of them?
A Absolutely. I would say that in my experience
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with working with victims of sexual assault or child

abuse, is that the delayed disclosure, the recantation,

and the secrecy has been something that I had to -- work

- with children.

Q Those three would be the most common
characteristics you see?

A Yes. Well, entrapment and acéommodation as
well, because while children are being sexually abused
they -- and they don't tell right away, they accommodate
with other things in their life. They may over excel in
things or they may have behavior outbursts and get --
turn to substance abuse, cutting, other behaviors that
are -- whatever they're doing to accommcdate the abuse
that's happening fo them.

0 Did you have to go through special training
just specifically for Child Sexual Abuse Accommodation
Syndrome?

A No. Not just specifically for the
accommodation syndrome. g

Q Was it touched on in other trainings you have
attended?

A Absolutely, yes.

Q Is it something that is discussed in your field
reg-. —— common??
A Yes.
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0 Is it common?
A It is kind of the most common .research:
that -- that the Children's Law Center or -- the common

training that the Childrén's Law Center has been doing
for the past 13 years that I've, on and off, have been
to some of their trainings, so.

Q Are some of these characteriétics something

that a layperson would be able to recognize or know

about?

A Yes.

Q Have you testified regarding this syndrome
previously?

A I may have. And I took a little hiatus from

this profession as far as forensic interviewing and
working with Hope Haven. So in 2000- -- between 2004
and 2006, I -may Have talked about the child abuse
accommodation syndrome in court. And I'm not sure if it
was family court or criminal court: | ~

Q But you have testified about it before?

A Yes, ma'am.
Q Okay.

MS. CONCANNON: Beg the Court'"s indulgence?
THE COURT: Take your time.
0 (By Ms. Concannon) You mentioned earlier

that laypeople. could possibly identify some of these
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elements. What are some of the things that only your
specialized knowledge has allowed you to pick up on and
cbserve in these children?

A I guess I would -- I don't know -- really know
how to answer that. Can you be more specific?

Q I'11 try to‘fephrase it.‘ You ‘have specialized

knbwledgevregarding this specific syndrome; correct?

A It's not really a syndrome.
Q Characteristicé?
A . Right; yeah. .Characteristics, I guess you

could say.

Q Okay. So you -—-

A But I believe that I could explain those
characteristics to a layperson because it's basically
walking them through what it's like to.be a child that
is living with child sexual abuse.

Q v And you've gained the ability to explain to a
layperson these symptoms, these characteristics, through
your training, your eXperience, education?

A Yes. I do-it every day.

Q ‘Okay. Is there any way a layperson could
possibly pick up on these as you do?

A. Yes.

Q But it's your training and experience that make

it --
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A  It's SOmething that»the-layperson doesn't
really thlnk about and -- because sexual .abuse is-
somethlng we don t want to even -- well, 'sexual abuse, I

find, in my professlonal~oplnlon, is something that's:

taboo, and Something that is not_easily'talked abeut.

It's unconfortabie People find that when chlldren are
sexually abused, well they should tell right- away
because something happened and 1t»was wrong.J And so
we —-- T explaln to adults' that children -- there s many
reasons why children don't tell right away. There s -
many reasons why people -- why chlldren keep it a‘ |

secret. There's: many reasons why chlldren tell and

:then‘take it back qnlckly and recant. So I thlnk that

that‘s where my education and experience can tome in to:
explain.

0. Okay. So fot‘a iayperson} they'may recognize
these symptoms but may not necessarily recognize them as
sexual abuse? .. ‘_‘ o o i

A Absoldtely.

Q ‘Your expertise and training has made you
reeognize them as part of sexual abuse”with chiidren?

A That's.dorrect. | o ' |

MS. CONCANNON: I have mothing further for this

'MS.CAMPBELL: May it pleasé the Court?
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CROSS-EXAMINATION
BY MS. CAMPBELL:

Q Ms. Twitty, isn't it true that in the Child
Sexual Assault Accommodation Syndrome, which is what
most of the literature calls it, isn't it true that this
assumes that a?use has occurred?

A No, not necessarily.

Q  Okay. And that the accommodation syndrome
cannot prove that abuseé has occurred?

A Correct.

Q It assumes that it has occurred because you're
assuming the child is accommodating; right?

A Well, accommodation is one step that the child
may or may nof have.

Q Do you see this -- that protocol, if you will,

as a diagnostic tocl?

A No.
Q Okay. So what use does it provide to you?
A What use it provides to me is educating, I

guess you would say, the laypeople, the families, the
world about what it's like for a child that is sexually
abused. .

0 So you would come in here to educate the jury
about what it's like to be a sexually abused child:

right?
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A If that's what I'm called for.
o] That's what you said this testimony would be,
you would be eddcating them? '
A  Well, this -- this -- a child sexual Abuse

Accommodation Syndrome doesn't necessarily mean that
the child was sexqally.abused. 'If the child makes a
disclosure and'i$ haVingAs§me symptoms that a
prbfessional may see fit into one of the five‘categories
then, yes, that's how I would help educate someone.
Q And would you also testify and admit that there
are studies that -- well, are you familiar with the

studies that show that many times a failure to disclose

‘is indicative of just lying about the assault having

even occurred?

A I'm sure theré's many studies that say that,
but I know that there are more Studies that I have
researched that say that children do commonly deny in
the beginning. I don't know if you look at lying as
denying. ‘

Q - And so you would take the position, the
question about that, that there's more studies on your

side of the fence than on the other; right?

A No, I'm not saying that.
0 And isn't it true that.in -- that in the.
sexual -- Child sexual Abuse Accommodation Syndrome,
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what you look at are these peculiarities that develop
like bed-wetting or acting out or some, you know, major
change in the sociodevelopment of this child, chronic
behavioral abnormalities; right?

A That -- those behaviors can be from divorce,
bullying, not -- or a lot of other issues, not
necessarily just child sexual abuse.

MS. CAMPBELL: Okay. I think that's all I
have, your Honor.
THE COURT: Is that all you have?
MS. CAMPBELL: That's all I have.
MS. CONCANNON: Thank you, your Honor.
REDIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MS. CONCANNON:
Q Ms. Campbell stated that those can be

indicative of other aspects at home; correct?

A Correct.

Q But they're also indicative of child sexual
abuse?

A That is correct.

MS. CONCANNON: I have nothing further for this
witness. |

THE COURT: Ms. Campbell?

MS. CAMPBELL: I have no further questions for

her.
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THE COURT: <You may step down. Thank you.

Do you have ahy other witnésses that I need to-
consider?

MS. CONCANNON: Not regarding Ms. Twitty's
testimony. A

THE COURT: All right. Any arguments?

MS. CAMPBELL: 'I'll be happy to argue, or would

you like --

THE COURT: 1Is thefe anything else that I need
to —--

MS. CAMPBELL: I do have a brief argument, your
Honor.

THE COURT: All right. Briefly.

MS. CAMPBELL: That -- you know, most of the
time, your Honor, when courts aﬁe confronted with a
Child sexual Assault»Acéohmodation Syndrome, they will
allow, in a very limited way, fqr the State to use it as
a rehabilitation tool, not as‘substantive evidence in
the case in chief. There's ~-- there's clearly a -- the
situation where Ms. Twitty is going to -- want to
testify about --

THE COURT: Define "rehabilitation tool."

MS. CAMPBELL: Perhaps, in the research that
I've done, if -- if -- there was some indication that

maybe —-- maybe subsequent to cross-examination, that
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there needed to be some effort on the State's part to

rehabilitate their witness, that some states have

"allowed it for that limited purpose, to explain why

there was the delay in reporting if that was the subject
of the cross-examination. But most states have held
that it is inadmissible evidence and that it is
pseudoscience and that it should not be allowed in -- in
the case in chief certainly. And we just continue to
object to that. Thank you, your Hdnor.

MS. CONCANNON: Thank you, your Honor. The

State would argue that pursuant to State v. Shumpert as

in combination with Kromah, which is more recent, that
she should be able to testify in the field of sexual
abuse regarding the -- and in the combination of Child
Sexual Abuse Accommodation Syndrome as it is a —-- she's
an expert in that field, and it's her specialized
knowledge that gives rise to indicate that those
particular characteristics could be indicative of child
sexual abuse. Not always, but sometimes.

THE COURT: Anything further, Ms. Campbell?

MS. CAMPBELL: No,'your Honor.

THE COURT: Just so I'm clear, because I still
have missed the link, she did the forensic interview?

MS. CONCANNON: Yes, your Honor.

THE -COURT: And when did the -- when was the
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forensic interview déne in relation to the incident?

MS. CONCANNON: Roughly five months later.

THE COURT: Okay. Why can she not -- why is it
tﬁat you're not going to ask her the question

specifically as to the delayed reporting of this -- of

~the victim and you want her to talk in general terms

that a layperson can understand?

MS. CONCANNON: In my opinion, that would just
be bolstering the credibility of Minor already -- who
will have already testified. Minor can'testify as to
what she did, what happened to her after the assault.
Kendra Twitty is just testifying generalized --

THE COURT: You plan to call‘the victims first?

MS. CONCANNON: . Yes.

THE COURT: All right. I'm going to withhold

‘my ruling until I hear the testimony from the victim.

All right. .

All right. That will élso give you some
time -- we're going to - as I understand it, we're
done with the motions. So she's here, and that will
give you an hour or so that if you wanted to speak with
Ms. Twitty concerning that, since you were just given
that infermation on Wednesday, Ms. Campbell.

MS. CAMPBELL: Yes, ma'am..

THE COURT: Did we address all of the motions?

Reported By:
v Rolayne M. Volpe, CCR, RPR
Official Court Reporter for the State of South Carolina




BwWw N e

A O»n

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

Page 139
State versus Gerald T. Barrett, Jr.
Jury Trial, Volume I of IV

MS. CAMPBELL: 1I'm checking them off, your
Honor.

THE COURT: Mr. Shelton, make sure Ms. Twitty
doesn't leave until --

MR. SHELTON: Yes, I'll go check on her.

THE COURT: -- Ms. Campbell has an opportunity

to speak with her.

MR. SHELTON: Thank you, your Honor.

MS. CAMPBELL: If I could, your Honor, I did
have a motion on there about Kristin Dalton, who is the
certified nurse practitioner. I would like to know from
the State that the -- the type of expert they seek to
have her qualified as. I do have her curriculum vitae
from the State and some reports that she intends to rely
on in her testimony. And I'd like to clarify that.
That's all.

MS. CONCANNON: Just for the physical trauma of
child sexual abuse, I've provided regarding the -- the
hymen, the trauma that the body experiences with child
sexual abuse, and she'll testify that she's one of 16
nurses that does this in the state of South Carolina
regarding specifically child sexual abuse --.

THE COURT: Wait. What are you going to
qualify her as expert in?

MS. CONCANNON: In the physical aspects of

Reported By:
Rolayne M. Volpe, CCR, RPR
Official Court Reporter for the State of South Carolina

51



52

<N oy s W N

[e0]

10
11

12 .

13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

: Page 140
State wversus Gerald T. Barrett, Jr.
Jury Trial, Volume I of IV

child sexual abuse. The physical trauma on.the body of
a child for child sexual abuse.

THE COURT: All right.. Does that answer your
guestion, Ms. Campbell?

MS. CAMPBELL: It answered my question, your
Honor. '

THE COURT: All right. Do we need anything
further regarding that matter?

MS. CAMPRELL: Not at this moment.

~THE COURT: All right. I think all of
the -- all the other motions have been addressed. You
understand my rulings as to Ms. Twitty, Ms..Campbell?

MS. CAMPBELL: I do understand the ruling, your
Honor. And at this time, if I may approach tﬁe-court
reporter, I would like to mark my written mdtion on
Ms. Twitty.

THE COURT: Thank you.

MS. CAMPBELL: And I have presented that to the
court reporter, Defendant's Exhibit 9, which is my

motion referenced: Kendra Twitty and the Child Sexual

‘Assault Accommodation Syndrome Testimony.

(Defendant's Exhibit Number 9 is marked for
identification.)"
THE COURT: All right. Anything further?

MS. CONCANNON: Not from the State, your Honor.

Reported By:
_ Rolayne M. Volpe, CCR, RPR
Official Court Reporter, for the State of South Carolina



=
(@ N

11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

o 1 o b W NN

53
Page 141

State versus Gerald T. Barrett, Jr.
Jury Trial, Volume I of IV

MS. CAMPBELL: Not from the Defense.

THE COURT: All right. What are we doing as to
bond?

MS. CAMPBELL: Well, he's in ﬁail.

THE COURT: He's to remain in custody? No need
to address bond?

MS. CAMPBELL: I don't think there's any reason

to address that.

THE COURT: All right. Just making sure.

All right. See you at 9:00 a.m.

COURT IN ADJOURNMENT, at 4:05 p.m.

(End of Volume I of IV. Day two of the trial

to commence tomorrow, May 21, 2013, at 9:00 a.m.)
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Cross-Examination by Ms. Campbell
Redirect Examination by Ms. Concannon

STATE RESTS
DEFENSE RESTS
REPORTER'S CERTIFICATE
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EXHIB I T S
DESCRIPTION . I.D. _ ADMITTED
State's Exhibit:
Nos. 1 throﬁgh 6 _ I ~ 178
No. 11 - 257
DE}SCRIPTION . - ’ I.D. ADMITTED
Defendant's Exhibit:
DESCRIPTION S I.D. ADMITTED

Court's Exhibit:

No. 1 | . 326
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seek to have him remain under my subpoena that, you
know, was issued and he complied with yesterday and I'd
like to extend it through the end of the trial.

THE COURT; All right. You are still under
subpoena, and the Rule of Sequestration has been
invoked. Thank you.

MR. PATRICK HALL: Thank you, your Honor.

THE COURT: You may return -- is your office in
this courthouse?

MR. PATRICK HALL: I'm here all week.

THE COURT: That wasn't my question. Is your

office in this courthouse? Do you have offices in this

.courthouse?

MR. PATRICK HALL: Yes, we do.

THE COURT: All right. Is that where you will
be?

MR. PATRICK HALL: I will actually be in the
other courtroom, in Courtroom 3 -- in the back of
Courtroom 3.

THE COURT: All right. Thank you.

MR. PATRICK HALL: Thank you.

MS. CAMPBELL: That's all I have.

THE COURT: Thank you.

Anything before we brihg in the jury?

MS. CONCANNON: The State did have one
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follow-up guestion. Minor is here, and she will

testify. In her forensic interview, many times she's

been asked to speak about -- she's good until she gets
to the actual incident. She kind of breaks down a
little bit, and she's had to_write it out in the past.
Will the Cburt allow her, if in the -- in the event that
happens, she's not able tb get thé words out, would she
have permission fo write out what happened?

MS. CAMPBELL: I would object to that.

THE -COURT: All right. Let's see -- let's hope
that doesn't happen and deal with it when it happens;
All right? |

MS. CONCANNCON: Thank you, your Honor.

THE COURT: 1Is she going to be present during
openings?

MS. CONCANNON: No, ma'am. She will just be in
for her testimony.

THE COURT: All right. Let's bring in the
jury.

THE BAILIFF: Yes, ma'am.

(Respite.)

THE BAILIFF: The jurors are ready to enter,
your Honor. |

THE COURT: All right.. Please bring them.

in.
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Ladies and gentlemen, I do have my own laptop
on the bench. One of the questions a juror always asks
is, What are you doing on your laptop? Trust me, I am
not surfing Facebook or playing Words With Friends or
anything of that nature. I am researching law and
communicating regarding this case and other cases that
may be on the docket.

Ladies and geﬁtlemen, thank you again for
accepting this responsibility, jury service. Please
give your strict attention.

Madam Solicitor.

MS. CONCANNON: Thank you, your Honor. May it
please the Court?

OPENING STATEMENTS °
BY MS. CONCANNON:

South Carolina uses a term criminal sexual
conduct to refer to various sexual assaults. But to
a ld4-year-old girl, she may not kn?w what those words
mean. The first word that comes to her mind is rape.
That's the word that Minor used to describe what
that man there did to her. Minor was 14 years old the
day that her life was shattered. She was a child in
every sense of the word. She should be worried about

school and the gossip and maybe homework she may have or

tests or just school -- common worries a 14 year old

/
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should have. She should not be haunted by the pain and
the fear that she carries with her on a daily basis
because of that man, Gerald Barrett.

The Defendant was a family friend. He knew
Minor It was somebody thaf she should have been able
to trust. But his true colors came out around Saint
Patrick's Day of last year. There was more than meets
the eye to Gerald Barrett. . And on Saint Patrick's Day,
in Minor bed, in Minor .. bedroom, he held her down. He
forced her l4-year-old arms to the bed. She could not
move. She had nowhére to go. She was restrained there.
She was confined there. He hovered his adult man body
over her. He removed her underwear and forced her, 14
years old, to have sex with him.

This happened in a place where Minor called
home, a place she should have felt safe, a place where
she shouldn't have to worry about things like this. It
happened on the‘hight around Saint Patriék'é-Day. " The
grown—ups-were outside having a good time, and Minor was
inside watching TV, like any other 14 year old would.
| Defendant's first assertion of cont;ol occurred
downstairs. Minor was on the couch watching TV, and
Gerald Barrett came in. He sat on the couch next to
her. She felt just a little creeped out. She didn't

like it. Too close for comfort. She moved to a chair
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in the den. He followed. He got next to her on the
chair, and skin-to-skin dontact, he took his grown hands
and groped, first, her l4-year-old breasts; and,
secondly, he took his adult male hands, stuck them down
her l4-year-old body and fondled and groped her vaginal
area.

He wasn't done. Minor went upstairs to her
bedroom, a place that she should have been safe, she
should have felt safe. Couple of hours later, she hears
somebody walking up the stairs. She looks over, and
it's Gerald Barrett, Jr., standing in her bedroom.

He's there to assert his final control. He
gets on top of her; he pléces all of his weight down on
top of her. He's a grown man on top of a l4-year-old
little girl. He holds her arms down; he pins her to her
own bed. She cannot go anywhere. She is stuck there.
She is confinéd there. She cannot escape. She can't
even get a noise to scream. So she closes her eyes, and
she tfies to survive.

Her worst nightmare is coming true. And she
suffered what quite possibly will be the worst moment
she will ever suffer in her entire life. He ripped her
innocence from her and stole something from her that she
will never be able to get back, and Minor may never be

the same.
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"Now, through the dufation of this trial you're
going to hear different testimony and different
witnesses will testify and different evidence will be
presented. And I ask you to pay attention to what they
have to say. And you're also going to‘hear from Minor
herself. And she's going to take you back to that
night. She's going to take you to the den downstairs
wheré his initial attack oécurred, and then she's going
to take you to her bedroom, where he pinned her down and
forced her, 14 years old, to have sex with him.

Now, I'm confident, after you hear all this
testimony and all this evidence is presented, that you
will not hesitate to find thét Defendant, Geréld.

Barrett, Jr., first, guilty of lewd act for his initial

attack on Minor downstairs, where he groped and fondled

her body, but also of criminal sexual conduct with a
minor in the second degree -- Minor was 14 years -- as
well as kidnapping, for his finél assertion of control,
wheré he pinned her down.and forced her, 14 years old,
to have sex with him against her will. You will not
hesitate to find him;guilty; just as he did not hesitate
to rip her innocence right from under her. Thank you.

THE COURT: Ms. Campbell.

MS. CAMPBELL: May it please the Court, your

Honor?
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OPENING STATEMENTS
BY MS. CAMPBELL:

Good morning. As I said yesterday, when we
first met, my namé is Trasi Campbell. I represent
Gerald Barrett, Jr. Gerald is here in the courtroom,
seated at our table. His mom and his sister are here.
His dad was here yesterday. He will be here in a little
While; he's got tc come from Bluffton, work.

You know, people will tell you -- or people
will say, you know, there's always two sides to a story,
or, you know, there's two sides to a coin, or this is a
he-said/she-said thing. That's not how it is. And
that's definitely not how it is in this -courtroom, in
any American courtroom. Because here in this courtroom,
there is -- there is a guiding light, a principle that
every single one of us, the judge[ me, the prosecutor,
you, have to abide by. It's the foundation of how we
live and work and survive. And that is, when a man is
accused of a crime, what can any man do? Particularly a
crime like this. A man can say, I'm innocent. Can a
man prove himself innocent? No. Does a man have to
prove himself innocent? No. The burden of proof of
guilt sits right here on this table.

Because this is the Governﬁent. This is the

state of South Carolina. They are the ones who, through
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this officer right here, talked to Minor  investigated
this case, preparing:this case fof today, for you. And
you will ask yourselves, as we proceed, what did the
Government do to prepare this case for you? . Because
Mr; Barrett -- Gerala Barrett, just likewyou,'and you,
and me, we can't do that. We aon't have to do that. We
shouldn't have to do that, and we certainly can't do
that. All the man can say is: I'm innocent. I did not
do this.

So we say.to ourselves, Well, where's the
proof? What are the facts? What's the evidence in this

case? And I'll tell you. While, perhaps riveting, what

Ms. Concannon had to say is in no-way -evidence of

anything. It's not evidence that anything happened at
all. The evidence in this case, as her Honor has told
you, will be right there in that chair from the
witnesses that come into this courtroom and take that
Bible and put their hands on it and swear to tell you
and everybody else the truth today. Regardless of
anything else, anybody says, the only evidence that you
can take is from that witness stand.

And I'm going to ask you tc do sémething that's
probably a ‘little hard. .Because,vyou know, when you
work on a case, you talk to people about it, and you go

through your thoughts on it, and probably a lot of you,
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when you sat out there and you heard the Judge read the

Indictments in this case, you felt uneasy. You had a
little feeling in your stomach, like, oo, hmm, that's a
bad case. And what -you have to do is to take that
feeling, justifiable, though, and leave that at that
door. Because you can't bring that feeling in here.
That passion, that uneasiness, that flinching has got to
stay there. 1It's your ocath to leave it there.

And what I'll ask you to do, in place of that
cringe or that uneasiness, is to bring into this
courtroom three things with you: I'm going to ask you
to bring your respect, which I believe you all have,

your respect for this Judge and her rules that she gives

‘you; I'm going to ask you to use your will power, each

and every individual one of you --

‘Because you're not a group. Each one of you
sits in your own chair, with your own mind, and your own
heart.

-- and I'm going to ask you to use your
judgment and your discerning abilities to listen to what
people say to you, and make a decision as to what you
believe, individually, about that testiﬁony, and ask you
to discern and to see what you've been given and what
you have not been given.

And the third thing I will ask you is to take a
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solemn cath that at this moment you honestly presume

that Gerald Barrett is an innocent man. And if you can

-picture, as you should at this moment, that there -= you

know the Oiympic thchf there's a torch of innocence, of
light, that is over him -right now, and what I'm going to
do, and what I'm asking yoﬁ to do is, if I took that
torch, that innocence that every single man deserves
when he sits in that chair? and:I’m going to break it up
into 12 pieces. And I'm going to give each and every
one of you a piecé of that torch of innocence, and I'm
going to ask you'td hold onto it. And you're going to
hold it high, and you're going fo carry it throughout
this trial. And you knoﬁ what? Even when this trial
is over, the Judge is goiﬁé to Eell,yoﬁ that you're
going to take that térch, that innocence that we all
abide by, and you're going to put it in the jury réom
with all of you. And nobody is going to put that torch
out. | |

The only way that that;torch éan be
extinguished'is if you, individuallyJ say to yourself;
that's the torch I'm given, and I'm putting it out. And
the reason I'm putting it out is because the'stéte,of

South Carolina has proven to me, beyond reascnable

doubt, that Gerald Barrett is guilty. -And you say to

yourself at that point, and you know why I'm putting
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that torch of innocence out? Because I have no
hesitations whatsoever. And the Judge will tell you
reasonable doubt is the kind of doubt that would make a
reasonable person hesitate to act.

I'm éoing to have a chance to speak to you one
more time, just the two of us, you know, here. And I'm
gqing to say to you, when we finish this trial, that
there is no proof. I believe that when we finish, that
the doubts that will be in your mind will far surpass
reason, and that you will carry back into here, into
this courtroom, each one of you, that torch of
innocence, that torch of light, and you will 'say, to
this courtroom: No, you have not met your burden, state
of South Carolina.

I thank you, on behalf of my client, for your
duty here today, and I appreciate your time this
morning. Thank you;

| THE COURT: Call your first witness.

MS. CONCANNON: Thank you, your Honor. State
calls Mary Grossnicklaus.

THE DEPUTY CLERK OF COURT: Would you place
your left hand on the Bible and raise your right hand.

(The oath is administered by the Deputy Clerk
of Court, and the witness answers as follows:)A

THE WITNESS: I do.
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THE DEPUTY CLERK-OF COURT: Please be seated.
State yoﬁr name and spell it for the Court, please.
THE WITNESS: My name 1is Mary Grossnicklaus.
THE COURT: Spell your last nahe.
THE WITNESS: G—r—o-s—é—n—i—c—k—l-é—u—s.
THE COURT: Your witness.
MS. CONCANNON: Thank you, your Honor.
MARY GROSSNICKLAUS,
having been first»duly sworn by tﬁe Deputy Clerk of
Court to tell the truth, the whole truth, and nothing
but the truth, was examined and testified upon;hér ocath
as follows: | |
DIRECT EXAMINATION
MS. CONCANNON:

Good morning. May I call you Mary?

A Yes.

0 Thank you. Do you know Minor ‘ ?

‘A Yes. |

Q How do you know her?

A She ‘is my stepgranddaughter.

Q . When you say stepgranddaughter, how 1s she your
stepgranddaughter?

A My son -- my son married Brandace. She had
Minor Minor was, I think, threé when they mafried.

Q  Okay. So you've -- Minor has been in your life
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since she was three years old?

A Yes.

Q Did she ever live with you?

A Yes.

Q Does she live with you now?

A No.

0 Do you know who she lives with now?

A Tyreed Lucas (phonetic), her father.

Q Her father?

A Yes. ’

Q Do you remember last early spring-?

A Yes.

Q Okay. Would Minor ever go to Aiken with
you?

A Yes. - Each time I would pick up my other

granddaughters, Minor would usually come spend the
weekend with me.

Q Were there any of those trips that stick out in
your mind today?

A Yes. The trip that we -- when I picked them up
for spring break last year, when Minor disclosed to me
what had happened to her.

Q. Did she say where anything had happened?

A Yes. She said it happened when they -- her --

she was living with her brother at Shawn's.
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0 Okay. Do you know where Shawn lived?
A No, I'm not familiar with Bluffton. . She gave
me the name of the street, Pine-scomething -- Pine

Forest, maybe, but I'm not familiar with this area.

Q Bluffton?

A Yes;

Q Did she say when it would have happened?

A She said around Saint Patrick's Day.

Q Okay. And how long after Saint Patrick's Day

was this conversation?

A Saint Patrick's Day would have been in March.
This would have been April.

Q Okay. With that information, what did you do?

A After she disclosed to me, we talked about it.
And I cqntacted ﬁer father, first and foremost, to let
him know what she had told me. And then -- that would
have been on a Monday evening, because I'picked up the
girls on a Friday. So it was Monday evening Minor and I
had that chat, and we called her father. And then
Tuesday, I contacted law enforcement here in Beaufort
County.

Q Okay. So just one more time again. When did
Minor say it happened? ‘

A Around Saint Patrick's Day.

Q And where did she say?
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A At Shawn's house on Pine Forest, and I believe

that's a Bluffton address.
MS. CONCANNON: Okay. I have no further
questions for this witness at this time.
THE COURT: Ms. Campbell.
MS. CAMPBELL: May i1t please the Court?’
CROSS—EXAMINATION
BY MS. CAMPBELL:

Q Mary, do you remember talking to a Deputy
Sheriff Glass in early July, 2012, and tellihg him that
that is when you received some information about an
accusation against Gerald Barrett? Do you remember
telling Deputy Sheriff Glass that it was July, not
spring break?

A I was contacted in July.

Q Okay. So you do remember talking to Deputy
Sheriff Glass?

A Yes.

Q Okay. And do you remember telling him, aiso,
that Minor said that she was making this accusation as
happening one to two weeks -- right before the end of
school 2012? Do you remember telling Deputy Sheriff
Glass that?

A No.

Q Okay. Do you remember -also telling Deputy
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Sheriff Glass that you were going to call Minor mother,
with no mention of calling her dad; right?
A. No. I would not have called her mother.
Q Okay. So when Deputy Sheriff Glass says, Mary
stated she contacted Minor ' mother and advised her of

the situation, well, Deputy Sheriff Glass is just lying?

A No. What Happened was, I contacted Tyreed, and
Tyreed contacted Brandace. Brandace then called me,
yes. But I contacted Tyreed first. Brandace contacted
me.

0 And Deputy Sheriff's Glass' report, that
indicates you set the date and the time one to two weeks
prior to the conclusion of school, he muét be lying
about that too?

A Ma'am, I can't recall. That was a year ago.

o) Okay. So if he wrote it down in his report,
when it was happening; and his recollection was taking
place at that time, in preparation of the trial, what he
wrote down might, in fact, be more accurate than what
you can remember; right?

A It may, yes, ma'am. .

MS. CAMPBELL: Thank ybu. I have nothing
further for ﬁer. v
MS. CONCANNON: Just a brief follow-up. Thank

you, youxr Honor.

Reported By:
Rolayne M. Volpe, CCR, RPR
Official Court Reporter for the State of South Carolina



o s W N

10
11
12
13
14

15

16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

: Page 175
State versus Gerald T. Barrett, Jr.
Jury Trial, Volume II of IV
REDIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MS. CONCANNON:
Q Mary, why wouldn't you have called Brandace,
Minor mom?
A Because this happened while she was living with

her mother, and I knew that her mother was friends with
the accused. So I contacted her father first. .I didn't
feel her mother could adequately protect her.

MS. CONCANNON: TI have no further questions for

this witness.

RECROSS-EXAMINATION
BY MS. CAMPBELL:

0 Mary, isn't it true that Minor was living with
you up around Aiken before she came down here to sfayr
with her mother?

A Yes.

Q And isn't it true, when she was living up
there, that she was starting to get in some trouble, and
you sent her down here to her mother's?

A She did not get into trouble while she was
there, but, yes, I sent her home.

Q Didn't you send her for some mental health
counseling for cutting herself?

A No, ma'am, I don't know anything about her ever

cutting herself.
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MS. CAMPBELL: OQkay. Thank you.

THE COURT: You may step down. Thank you.
Call your next witness.

MS. CONCANNON: The State calls Shawn Ward.

THE DEPUTY CLERK OF COURT: Would you place
your left hand en the Bible and raise your right hand
for me, please.

-(The oath is administered by the Deputy Clerk
of Court, and the witness answers as follows:)

THE WITNESS: I do.

THE DEPUTY CLERK OF COURT: Please be seated.
State your name and spell it for the Court, please.

THE WITNESS: Shawn Ward, S-h-a-w-n W-a-r-d.

SHAWN WARD,
having been first duly sworn by the Deputy Clerk of
Court to tell:the truth, the whole truth, and nothing
but the truth, was examined and testified upon his oath
as follows: .
DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MS. CONCANNON:

Q Shawn, where do you live currently?

A Pine Forest Drive, Bluffton.

Q Is that -- I'm sorry?

A In Bluffton.

Q Is that where you lived in March of last year?
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A Yes.
0 Okay. -In March of last year, who lived there

with you?

A Brandace Smith, Minor , T and
S. were there on visitations bccasionally.
Q Who are T. and S. ?
A Those are Brandace's other daughters.
0 Brandace is Minor mom?
A Yes.
0 And did Minor and Brandace livé with you full

time during that time?.

Yes.

Did Minor have her own bedroom there?
Yes.

Okay. Where was this bedroom?

b-I O I ol

It was upstairs. Kind of like a loft area and
then a bedroom off of the loft.

MS. CONCANNON: Okay. Permission to approach,
your Honor?

THE COURT: You may.

MS. CAMPBELL: Your Honor, may I see what the
Solicitor has? I haven't seen these. May I have a
moment?

THE COURT: You may.

(Documents are handed to Ms. Campbell.)
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i

MS. CONCANNON: Perﬁission to approach?
THE COURT: VYou may approach.
Q (By Ms. Concannon) Shawn, I'm going to show
you a couple of marked State's Exhibits, 1 through 6.
Do you recognize these pictures?

(Document is handed to the witness.)

A Yeah. These are all pictures of my house.

0 Those are pictures of your hquse?

A Uh-huh. ‘

Q I'm going to-ask ygu specifically about State's

Exhibit 6. What is that a picture of?
A That's the entrance to the bedroom upstairs,

standing in the loft area at the top of the stairs.

0 And whose bedroom was this in March of last
year?
A That was Minor 3',

MS. CONCANNON: Permission to publish these to
the jury and admit into evidence?- ‘

THE COURT: Any objection?

‘MS. CAMPBELL: I have no objection.

THE COURT: All right.  State's 1 through 6
into evidence without objection. You may publish.

MS. CONCANNON: Thank you, your Honor.

(State's Exhibit Nos. 1 through 6 are -admitted

into evidence.)
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THE COURT: You can pass them one at a time if
there's no reason for them to stay in the packet.
(State's Exhibit Nos. 1 through 6 are published
to thebjury at this time.)
Q (By Ms. Concannon) Shawn, do you know

Gerald Barrett, Jr.?

A Yes.

0 Do you maybe know him by another name?

A Yes.

Q What would you know him as?

A Bubba.

Q Okay. Do you see him in the courtroom today?

A Yes.

Q Could you point him out, please?.

A Sitting in the middle of the table to the left
there.

MS. CONCANNON: Thank you. Let the record

reflect that the witness pointed out the -- identified

the Defendant.
THE COURT: It will.

Q (By Ms. Concannon) We're going to go back
to the spring of last year. Do you remember the time
surrounding Saint Patrick's Day?

A Yes.

Q You were still living at this house you
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currently. live ‘at?
- A - Yes.
Q@  Does anything sighificaht stand out in your
head regarding that time, a day?

A The Saint Patrick's 'Day Parade.

0 And what did you do on -- where was this
parade? .

A It was Coligny, South End, Hilton Head.

o Hilton Head. Okay. Wﬁo‘was at this pafade
with you?

A It was me, Brandace, Minor ;_T : ;S '
and then, of course -- that was who was with our
immediate party, but there was several people there,
friends and other people that we know.

Q Did y'all stay. at the parade the whole time
that the -- the duration of the parade?

A Yeah.

. Q What happened after the parade?
A We listened to éome nmusic, .some bands, one at

New York City Pizza, and then over to Wild Wings to the

outdoor stage.

o] And after y'all.did that, where did you go?-w

A After that, we went home.
Q '~ And who was with you when you went home?
A

It was me, Brandace, and.T.
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Okay. When you got back to your house, did

anybody else come over, or was anybody else already

there?

A

Yeah. We had a few friends over. That was

what we told people, to come on over after. We were

going to have a fire and have some drinks. Yeah, we had

people over.

Q
A

Q
‘A

Q

Were you drinking. this. day?’

Yes.

Were you drinking beer, or liquor?
Beer.

Beer. Do you remember, maybe, how many beers

you had that day and into the night?

A

=R O N ¢

was a

OO o oF 0O ¥ 0

Throughout the whole day? Maybe eight beers.
Were you drunk?

No.

Do you remember every part of the night?

Not every part of it, but. Just because it

year ago, you know.

Because it was longer?

Yeah.

Not because of your intoxication?
Right.
Okay. Was the Defendant at this get-together?

Yes.
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Q You saw him there?

A Yes.

0 Did Minor. stay at the house that night?

A Yes. 4

Q Did the Defendant-spend the night that
night? ‘

A.‘ Yes.

Q  How do you know that?,.

A Well, because ﬁe asked me if he could spend

the night, and he had to work in the morning. It was

getting late. And I said, 'yeah, you can stay on the

couch., ‘

Q Okay. . Had ybu met the Défendant_pfibr to this
day?

A Yes.

Q- Do you know how many times you, maybe, had met

him before?

A I couldn't give you an exact number, but just a
handful of times. |

Q A handful of'times._

How were you introduced to him?

A Through Brandace and her daughters, as a friend
of their families'. |

Q Okay. Was there anytime in the night that you

ever remember the Defendant being alone with Minor or
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being with Minor
A There was people there. I'm -- there could
have been -- I don't want to say for sure, because there

was a lot of in and out, and I don't know at any point
that they were alone. But we were all there and in
and out from inside to outside. So I really can't say
that -- I can't particularly remeﬁber a point, standing
out, where he was alone with her.

Q Were -- the adults that were there, were they

mainly inside of the house, or outside of the house?

A It was a little bit of both.

Q All right.

A We had a fire going. So'we were in and out.

0 Fire?

A Fire outside.

Q Okay.

A So it was out by the fire, back in the house,
you know.
‘ Q Okay.

A Front porch.

Q | Okay. But you remember Minor being there. Did

Minor spend the night that night?
A Yes.
Q Did you ever take Minor to school while you --

while her mother and her lived with you?
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A Yeah.

Q Frequently? Occasionally?

A Occasioﬁally.

0] Occasionally. Okay.

A Because she -- she caught the bus at 0ld South
usually.

Q Okay.

A But that was early. So if we were running late
or —— I worked on the island. So I had .to drive right

by the high school. So those were the days that I would
take her toc school.

Q When she couldn't catch the because?

A Yeah, for whatever reason. If it was running

late that morning.

- Q But you had taken her to school before?
A Yeah.
Q Okay. And'do you remember Bubba specifically

being there that night?
A Yes.
MS. CONCANNCON: Okay. Beg the Court's
indulgence?
THE COURT: Take your time.
{Ms. Campbell speaks with Mr. Shelton off the
record.)

MS. CONCANNON: I have no further questions for
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this witness at this time.
THE COURT: Ms. Campbell.
MS. CAMPBELL: Thank you, your Honor.
CROSS-EXAMINATION
BY MS. CAMPBELL:
Q Mr. Ward, back in, gosh, maybe July of 2012,
when Minor first accused Gerald of this act, isn't it
true nobody interviewed you? You didn't talk to any

police about this, did you?

A Not at that time.
Q Okay. This -- this horrific criminal sexual
conduct .-- this rape that was supposed to have taken

" place in your home; right?

A Yes.

Q Right?

A Yeah.

Q Not a single police officer discussed those

allegations with you; right?

A Not at that time -=-

Q Not at that time.

A -- that you're speaking about.

Q The pictures that you identified as being of

your home.
A Uh-huh.

0 The bed in Minor room, that's where Minor

Reported By:
Rolayne M. Volpe, CCR, RPR
Official Court Reporter for the. State of South Carolina

85



86

S O o W N

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 186
State versus Gerald T. Barrett, Jr.
Jury Trial, Volume II of IV

slept; right?

A Right.

Q That would be the bed where this sexual assault
is supposed to have taken place; right?

A Right.

0 Okay. And sometime in March of 2013, this

officer here, this Investigator Adams, he came out to

~your house; right?

A Yes.
Q Okay. And then, and only then, he interviewed

you about these .allegations; right?

A Yes. v

Q Okay. And you let him into your house; right?
A Yes.

Q You let him walk around your house?

A That's right.

Q You let him take pictures of your house?

A Uh-huh. ‘

Q And you let him take pictures of theAbed where

the sexual assault was supposed to take place; right?

A Right.

Q Erior to March, 2013, not a single officer had
come to your house to look at that bed; right?

A Right.

Q Okay. Now, you remember in March, 2013, when
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Investigator Adams came to talk to you, he asked you to

‘make him a written statement; right?

A Yes.
Q And, Mr. Ward, you were honest when you made

that written statement, weren't you?

A Yes.

Q And you were telling the truth?

A Yes.

Q And so do you remember that in your written

statement, that you said that y'all had been partying
all day. 1It's Saint Patrick's Day and parade, and best
you can remember, somebody else took Brandace's three
girls back to your house in Bluffton. Someone took the

girls back to the house; right?

A Yeah.

Q‘ You don't know who that was; right?

A (Moves head from side to side.)

Q Okay. And you also said that about an hour or

two later, you and Brandace wound back up at the house;

right?
A Right.
Q Okay. And the girls were already there; right?
A Two of the girls.
C Minor was there; right?
A Yes.
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o) Okay. And after y'all got back, basically you

just moved the party to your house in Bluffton; right?

There was a party?

A ‘If you want to call it that, yeah.
0 Now, let's just clear up this school situation
right now. Because you live in Bluffton, but -- but

Minor was going to school on Hilton Head?

A Yes.

Q Normally if you live in Bluffton, you_don'tvgo
to school on Hilton Head, do you?

A ANot_usually.

Q Okay. You -- you went to bed that night, you
say, Mr. Ward, about midnight; right?

A Right.

Q. And you say you-slept all through the night.Av
You never heard a single thing; right? ’

A That's right.

Q Notka disturbance, nothing; right?

A That's right. \ ‘

Q And you say you got .up about 6:30 in the

morning, you got yourself dressed, and you went to work;

right?

A Yep.

Q Okay. You made it very clear that you did not
take Minor to school that morning; right? You went to
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work?
A Yeah.
Q Okay. You made it clear to this officer,

when he interviewed you in March of 2013, that Minor
according to you, was missing her boyfriend, Ce ‘

back in Aiken; didn't you?

A Excuse me? Repeat that.
0 You told Investigator Adams that Minor yas
missing her boyfriend, Ce. , back in Aiken; right?
A During that time?
Q Yes. While she was living with you in
Bluffton.
A Yes. She was, in the beginning, missing him,
yeah.
Q Would it be fair to say that you were
Brandace'slsupport -- financial support during that

spring 20127
A Not coémpletely, no.
Q Did you pay the bills at that house?

A "Not all of them.

Q Did you pay the rent? »

A We put our money together and paid the bills as
needed.

Q When you came back to your house after the

festivities of Saint Patrick's Day 2012, I guess, Hilton
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' Head parade, after you finished work that day, did you

see any signs in the bedroom or the bathroom, or

anywhere like that, that there was -- were bloodstains,

ior sheets that had been discarded, or-any signs that

someone -had -been sexually:assaulted and bled profusely?
Did you see.anything_like that, Mr. Ward?
A No, not downstairs. But I didh'tigo upstairs.
I didn'r uéuallyago up there.
MS. CAMPBELL: 'May Ifapproacﬂ?~q
THE COURT: You may.

Q | (By Ms. Campbell). Mr. Ward, I'm going to show
you what's been marked State's Exhibitho. 6, if I may.
y:\ 'Ali right. |

Q And you‘ve already said that is a photograph of
the bed that Minor was sleeping in when she made the
allegétién that Mr. Barrett sexually»aséaulted her;
correct? l | » ‘ |

A Actually, no.  That is a bed that I've moved up
there since. Therehwas\a bed invthat samé spot.

Q Ch, really? Whére_is that bed now?

I'm not sure. -
You don't know where that bed is?

No.

LGNNI © B

Okay; And then why would you let Officer Adams

take a photograph of a bed and lead him to believe that
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was the bed she was assaulted in-?

A No.’

Q Why would you do that, Mr. Ward?

A He asked to take pictures of the room and
everything there. I don't believe the comment -- the

conversation came up, was that the exact bed.
Q  Okay.
It was more to take pictures of the area.
It was what?

To take pictures of the area that --

A
Q
A
Q The area.
A —-- she stayed in.
Q He wanted to see where the assault occurred;
right? And you led him to this room, and he took a
photograph of this room; right?

A Yeah. But that's the room the assault
allegedly occurred in.

Q Right. So if Officer Adams thought this was

where it took place, he just assumed that; right?

A I don't understand what you're saying.

o) What .I'm saying, Mr. Ward --

A He asked if he éould take some pictures.

o) Right.

A -Okay. And I said: Of course, whatever you

want to do.
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Q Right.
A You want to take pictures, take pictures. So
he asked: 1Is this where she stayed?
Yeéh,’she stayed up the stairs.
Okay. This is the room?>
Yes. “
Is that where the béd was located?
Yes.
So those are the kind of questions. I just let
him do his job.
Q. That would lead Officer Adams to believe -- and
fhank you for helping us along with that =-- that that

was the bed. Thank you.
A Ali right.
MS. CAMPBELL: Just one second, your Honor,
please?
That's all I have for this witness. Thank
you.
THE CQURT: Ms. Concannon?
MS. CONCANNON: Thank you, your Honor.
REDIRECT EXAMINATION
MS. CONCANNON: | |
Q Just a couple of.follow—up questions, Shawn.
That day, roughly a little ovef:a year ago, around Saint

Patrick's Day of last year, you don't remember if you
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took Minor to school that day, do you?
| A Yeah. I don't remember, because I've took her
occasionally, 'and I can't =-- being such a long time ago,
I can't remember about that morning, if I fook her to
school or not.

. Q ‘Do you know exactly what days you took her to
school?

A Exactly what days?

Q TUh-huh.
A ‘No.
Q This night that we were speaking of, you

remember Gerald Barrett asking you for permission to

spend the night?
A Yes.
MS. CONCANNON: I have no further questions.
MS. CAMPBELL: May I approach, your Honor?
THE COURT:- You may.
RECROSS-EXAMINATION
BY MS. CAMPBELL:

Q Mr. Ward, I'm going to hand you a copy of your
statement that you gave to Investigator Adams on March
l16th, 2013. And I'm gding to ask you to read the
sentence that begins right heref' I got up.

A Okay. I got up at 6:30 to 7:00 a.m. to go to

work -and cannot recall if I saw him in the morning or
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not.
Q Okay. And you made the statement that you got

up 6:30, 70 clock to go to work and you gave that
statement to Offlcer Adams in March 2013; correct?
A Yes. ‘ |

MS. CAMPBELL: That's all T have.

THE COURT.' You may step down Thank you.

Callvyour next w1tness.

MS. CONCANNON: Thank you, your.Honor. State
calls Minor » | 4y | _ o

THE DEPUTY CLERK OF. COURT . Would you‘place
your left hand on the Blble and raise your right hand

(The oath is admlnlstered by~therDeputy Clerk
of Court, and the witness answers as follows:y

THE WITNESS: Yes.: e

THE DEPUTYwCLERK OF COURT: Please be seated..
State your name and spell it for the Court please

THE WITNESS What do I Say7 : : *

THE COURT- I need you to state your full name
and spell your last name. '

THE-WITNESS¢-~Mm0E o (phonetic) .,

MS. CONCANNON: Thank you, your Honor.
. Mmm‘

r

having been first duly sworn1byrthe;Deputy}Clerk of
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Court to tell the truth, the whole truth, and nothing

but the truth, was examined and testified upon her oath

as follows:

BY MS.

Q
A

Q

birthday?

A

(ORI ol o 2 © I -D o T - o

Minor

DIRECT EXAMINATION

CONCANNON':

Minor , how old are you?

Fifteen. |

THE COURT: I need you to speak up, Minor
THE WITNESS: Fifteen.

(By Ms. Concannon) You're 15? When is your

What year were you born?

? So March of last year, how old were you?
Fourteen.
Fourteen? Where were you living last March?
Pine Forest.
Where is that?
In Bluffton.
Okay. Who -- who were you living with?
My mom and hér boyfriend, Shawn.

Okay. Where do you go to school right now,

Hilton Head High School.
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"What grade ‘are you in?

Ninth.

ﬁinth grade?

Uh;huh%'-

Do yoﬁ liké to go to school?

Yeah.

Yeah? What's your favorite subject?

‘Math.

Math?l Do you:get goodﬁgrades in school?
Sometimes. )

Sometimes? You do best invmath?

No. - |

But it's still your févorite?

{(Moves héad up and down.)

- THE COURT:- - You're QOing to have to answer out

lOud.

Q
Bluffton,

THE WITNESS:  Okay.
(By Ms. Concannon) When you were livihg in

did you live somewhére before thatvnot_in'

Beaufort County?

A
Q

A

Q

her name?

In Aiken.
In Aiken? Who did you live with in Aiken?
My grandma. .

Your grandma? Do you know her name? What's
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Maryi

Mary? Okay. is she your real grandma, or is
stepgrandma?

She's my mom’s ex-husband's mom.

Okay. Minor do you know someone named Bubba?
Yeah.

Yeah. How do you know Bubba?

He was my mom's friend.

How long do you think you've known Bubba?

A while.‘

A while? How old do you think you were when

you first met Bubba?

- O T S O R - R © B I OB S © B

Little.

Little? Do you know an age, maybe?
(Moves head from side to side.)
Were you in school?

No.

Before that?

Yeah.

Okay. Do you see Bubba today?
Yep.

Where is Bubba today?

Over there.

Can you point to Bubba, please.

No.
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He's over there?
(Moves head up and down.)

MS. CONCANNON: Okay. Let the record reflect

the witness did point to the Defendant.

THE COURT:. It will reflect she pointed towards

the Defendant.

Q

(By Ms. Concannon) Minor do you remember

around Saint Patrick's Day of last year?

A

"I o T "I © T~ T © S ~ B o

parade?

o B oo T O

Yep.
Do you remember going to a parade?
Uh-huh.

Where was this parade?

In Hilton Head.

'On Hilton Head? Were you there all day?

Huh-uh, no.
How ibng do you think you were at the parade?
A few hours.

A few hours? What were y'all doing at the

Usual stuff that people do at the parade.
Just walking around?

(Moves head up and down.)

Who were_you at the parade with?

My mom and Shawn and their friendé.(

After the parade ended, what did you do?
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- A I went home.
0 ' You went home? And is this the home where you
lived at with Mom and Shawn?
A Yeah.
Q Was fhere anybody else at this home when you
got‘there?
A When I got there, I was baby-sitting.
Q You were baby-sitting there? Who were you

baby-sitting?
A
o) And who is ?
A My dad's girlfriend's best friend's daughter.
0 Okay. Did anybody else show up throughout the

night at that house?

A My mom and Shawn and their friends.

Q Their friends? Was there a bunch of people
over or.

A There were a few.

Q A few people over? Where were the grown-ups

throughout the night?

A On the porch.

Q On the porch? Did y'all have a big backyard --
or backyard at this house?

A I don't really know. I didn't go in the

backyard, but it was -- I guess it was average. '
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MS. CAMPBELL: Your Honor, I'm having a very
hard time underétanding her. And I do apologize, but I
would like to hear her answers.

THE COURT: | Minor , you're going to need to
speak up. Ma'am, you're the farthest juror. Can you
hear?

THE JUROR: Uh-huh.

THE COURT: Thank you. If you need to move,
let me know.

MS. CAMPBELL: Thank you.

THE COURT: Thank you.

MS. CAMPBELL: Thank you.

Q (By Ms. Concannon) Just try to talk a little
louder in the microphone. |

So we're at Mom and Shawn's house; where you
lived; where was your home. You said the grown-ups are
out of -- theyfre on the porch?

A On the front porch.

Q Where are you?

A Inside.

Q What‘are you doing inside?

A Sitting on the couch watching TV.

Q Does anybody come in -- come in there while

you're watching TV?

A Yep.
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Who comes in there while you're watching TV?
Him. |

When you say "him," who do you mean?

Bubba.

Bubba? Whére does he go when he comes in the

He sits down on the couch.

Is that where you're seated?
Yep.

What does he do on the couch?

He sat down really close to me. So I moved to

the chair.

louder.

it

©

(ORI O 2 I © B

THE COURT: You're going to have to speak
Thank you.

(By Ms. Concannon) You moved to the chair?
(Moves head up and down.)

What happened when you moved to the chair?
He came over there.

Did he sit on the chair with' you?

Yes, ma'am.

Was he beside you on the chair?

Yep.

How big is this chair? What kind of chair is

A chair. Like a usual furniture chair.
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'Okay. When he -- is he touching you when he's

sitting on the chair with you? 1Is his body touching

you?
A

Q

Yeah.

Okay. What happens when you're sitting on the

chair and he's sitting next to you on the chair?

A
Q

(Respite.)

Do you thihk I could take a break?

You needbto take a break?

Uh-huh. |

THE COURT: “Let me. know when she's ready.
THE‘WITNESS: Do I need to just sit here?
(Respite.)

(By Ms. Céncannon) You ready?

Yeah.

Okay. What is Bubba doing when he's sitting on

the chair next to you?

A

J oo P 0O

Q
clothes?

A

He touched me.

Where did he touch you?

My lower private area.
You have to say that a little louder, Minor
My lower private area.

Was this ébove your clothes, or underneath your

Underneath.
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0 Underneath? He was touching your skin on your
private area?
A Yep.
Q Did any part of him ever go inside of your

body, or did it stay on the outside of your private

10
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His fingers.

His fingers did what? They stayed --

The inside.

They went on the inside?

(Moves head up and down.)

When he's doing this, what are you doing?
Texting.

Do you ever leave the éhair?

Yep. I went upstairs.

Okay. Where did you go when you were upstairs?
To my sister.

And what sister is this?

T.

And what is T. doing right now?

She was sleeping. So I woke her up.

You -woke her up?

Yep..

What did y'all do?

We were just talking.
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Q Do you remember what y'all were talking about?

A Not really. That was a while ago.

0 Did you-tell T. what had happened
downstairs?

A No.

0 Why didn't you tell T ?

A I didn't feel the need:to. BecauséiI.was'
scared.

Q After you're in T 's bedroom, do you go
anywhere that night?

A Yeah.

Q  Where do you go?

A I fell asleep in Tv 's room, and then I wcke
up, and then I went to my room.

Q Do you know what time you woke up?-

A Not really.

Q It's dark outside?

A Yeah. Really dark:

Q Really dark? 1Is your room close to T. 's
room? .

A It was right beside it.

Q What does your room look llke'>

A It had glass doors and - and it's just a

regular room.

Q Just a regular room with a bed in it?
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(Moves head up and down.)

When you go in your room, are you wearing your

pajamas right now or not yet?

A
Q
A

Q

I can't remember. I think I was.
What do you sleep in?
A T-shirt.

A T-shirt? Did you have anything on the

bottom, underwear or pants or anything?

A

ORI o I T o I B @)

scared.

ORI O D © - -

Underwear.

You go into your bed -- do you go to sleep?
Yeah. I dozed off.

You dozed off?  Did something wake you up?
Footsteps.

After you heard footsteps, what did you do?
Pretended to sleep. '

Why did you pretend to sleep?

I don't know. It's just a reaction. And I was

Why were you scared?

I'm afraid of the dark.

Do you know whose footsteps those were?
After they come in.my room, yeah.

So those footsteps came into your bedroom?

. Yep.

Who came into your bedroom?
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Him.

When you -say "him," who is him?
Bubba.

Bubba?

Yeah.

What was Bubba doing in your bedroom?
I don't know.

Did he ever come in your bedroom before?

2o o 0 »r 0 o0

No.

Q No? What did Bubba do.when he got in your

bedroom?
A f,Laidvdowﬁ in my bed.
0 ~ Could you say that again, Minor ?
A Laid down in.my-bed. ' |
Q Does he think you're sleeping right now,_dr do

you let him know you're -awake?
A . I was awake.
Q You were awake? When he lays down in your bed,

is he beside you in your bed?

A Yep.

Q -Okay. -What happens when Bubba is in bed with
you?

A He started touching me again.

Q " When you- say ﬁtouching" you, where did he touch
you?

Reported By
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My lower private area.

What was he touching -- what part of his body

was touching your lower private areas?

A His fingers.

o) Were you still wearing your T-shirt and
underwear?

A Yep.

0 What did Bubba do after his fingers were

touching your private area?

A
Q
A
Q

area,

SR T T

Q

He got up.

Did he go anywhere else?

Nope.

Did Bubba's fingers go inside of your private
or were they on the outside of your private area?

Inside.

Where were your arms when this was happening?

My hands were on my face.

Why didn't you get up?

Because I was afraid.

Was Bubba holding you down?

At that point, no.

At that point, no. At a different point, was

he holding you down?

A

Q

Yeah. Yep.

How was he holding you down? Where were your
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arms?
A -Beside me. Above me, beside me.

Q What part of his body was holding your arms .

y:\ His hands.

Q Did you try to get away?
A I was afraid.
Q When Bubba's holding your hands down, what else

is he doing?

(Respite.)
Q Did any other‘part of Bubba touch your private
parts? '
A Yep.
Q What part of Bubba touched your private parts?
A His private part.
Q Did it go inside your private parts, or did it

stay on the outside of your,pri?ate parts?
Inside. A

He's oﬁ top of you during this?

Yep. Yeah. ’

Why didn't you scream or call for help?
Because I was afraid.

Why were you afraid?

I didn't know how anyone was going to react.

jo - c I o B I ©

After Bubba is on top 6f'you and his private is
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inside of your private parts, what happens next?

A

Lo TN "I o T~ I o T " o)

He heard a noise.

What did he do when he heard a noise?
Jumped up and left.

And he left? What did you do when he left?
I went to therbathroom.

What did you do in the bathroom?

I urinated.

Did you notice anything funny when you went to

the restroom?

I ORI o)

Q
anything

A

i ol I e

Blood.

There was blood. Was there anything else?
(Moves head up and down.)

Something weird.

Something weird? What did it look like?
It was white.

It was white?

Yeah.

After you went to the bathroom, did you do
else?

Took a shower.

After you took.-a shower, what did you do?
Locked my door and went to sleep.

Why did you lock your door?

I was scared.
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0 Did you have school the next morning, Minor

A Yep.

Q Did you go to school?

A Yes, ma'am.

o) Where were you at school during this time?

A Huh?

Q Where were you going to school?

A Hilton Head Middle School. )

Q Do.you-remember seeing Bubba that next morning?

A Yeah.

Q Where did you see him?

A Shawn took him to the hotel.

Q What hotel did Shawn takeihim to?

A Quality Inn.

0 Did Shawn take yéu somewhere that morning?

A He took me to school..

Q Minor who was the first person that you‘told
this -- that you told this happgned to? \

A T. '

Q Who's T. ?

A My little sister, the one that told.

0 How old is T. 2

A Twelve.
Q Twelve. Did you tell anybody else?
A Ta. |

Reported By:
Rolayne M. Volpe, CCR, RPR

Official Court Reporter for the State of South Carollna



Y U W N

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

HO OB 0 Y 0 X 0O P O

Q

_ Page 211
State versus Gerald T. Barrett, Jr.
Jury Trial, Volume II of IV

Who is Ta. ?

My best friend. And C. and Ce.
Who are C and Ce.

C. is one of my best friends.
And who is Ce. ?

He was my boyfriend.

Do they live here in Beaufort?

No.

Where do they live?

lives‘'in Anderson.

In Aiken. And C.

Okay. Why did you tell them first instead of

telling a grown-up?

A

» 0 P O B O b

Q

grandma?

A

Because.

Because why?

I was afraid.

Why were you afraid?

I didn't know what they were going to do.
You didn't know what who was going to do?
Anyone.

Did you tell anybody else about this?
Well, I had to tell my grandma.

Why did -- why do you say you had to tell your

Because T. told, and my grandma made me

tell her everything.
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This 1s Grandma Mary?
Yes, ma'am.

Do you remember when Grandma Mary found out?

O M O

When we were on the way back to Aiken,\when we
were taking my friend, M. , home.

Where does M. live?

Q

A In Wiﬁdsor.

o Why didn't you tell your mom, Minor 2
A

I didn't know how she was going. to react or

whét she was going to do.

Q Why didn't you. tell your dgd?

A Becaﬁse he has a very bad -- he's not goocd with
communicating sometimes, and he gets angry really,
really easy.

Q Wﬁy didn't you .tell Grandma Mary?

A I didn't want to talk about it“ and I was
scared too, because I knew thét dnce she found out, she
was going to tell.

Q Who were you scared she was going to tell?

A The police. Because I don't like talking about
"anything.

MS. CONCANNON: Beg the Court's indulgence?
THE COURT: Take your time.
(Ms. Concannon speaks with Mr. Shelton off the

record.)
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| MS. CONCANNON: Minor T don't have any more

guestions for you, but Ms. Campbell will have some
questions for you.

MS. CAMPBELL: Your Honor, may we approach
briefly?

THE COURT: You may.

(Side-bar; Ms. Campbell and Ms. Concannon
approach the bench.)

MS. CAMPBELL: Thank you, your Honor.

CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MS. CAMPBELL:

0 Minor -
A Yes, ma'am.
0 -=- you were living with your grandmother -- or

stepgrandmother, Mary, up around Aiken in 2011 and early
2012; is that right?
A Yes, ma'am.

Q Okay. When you were living with your

‘'stepgrandmother, isn't it true that you and your

‘Stepgrandmother were having a lot of disagreements and

arguments at that time?

A I wouldn't say they were disagreements. It was
more just about how my grades were. |

Q Your grades weren't very good?

A I had a lot of Ds.

Reported By:
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Q Would your stepgrandmother have told yéur mom
that you had started smoking?:
I didn't start smoking.

So she didn't tell her that?

bR © B

Not that I know of.

o) When you went to live with your mom here in
Beaufort County in 2012, y'all moved in wifh a fellow by
the name of Shawn Ward; right? | |

A Yep.

0 And Shawn would take care of the house and take

care of your mom and take care of you and your sisters;

right?
A Yes, ma'am.
Q And you remember that when you made the

allegation thét Gerald had assaulted you, that at some
point you sat down and wrote doWn what. you-said
happened;;right?

A Yep.

Q And do you remember thét when you first made
the allegation, you. said that this took place about a
week or two before the end of school. Do you femember
telling Grandma Mary that? |

A Not really. It was. a while ago.

Q Do you remember telliné some other people that

you remember it being two days after Saint Patrick's Day

. Reported By:
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when this happened? Do you remembér telling them that?

| A Yes, ma'am. And I get Saint Patrick's Day and
thé Saint Patrick's Day Parade confused, because I never
knew which one was which.

Q . Okay. So when you told someone that this
happened, and you said that it happened two days after
Saint Patrick's Day, who -- who picked that day? Who
picked March 19th, 20122 Was it you or the person you
were talking to that picked that day?

MS. CONCANNON: Objection. She's leading the

witness.

THE COURT: Overruled.

You may answer.

THE WITNESS: I don't know.
Q (By Ms. Campbell) You said, "I don't know"?
A I don't remember.

Q Okay. At some point, you talked to another
person about this allegation, and that person's name
was -- was Mr. Patrick Hall, a prosecutor for the state

of South Carolina. Didn't you talk to Mr. Hall about

this?
A Yes, ma'am.
Q And in - that conversation with Mr. Hall, isn't

it true that you again moved the date, and you moved it

to March 11th, eight days away from March 19th?
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A I moved it to the -- anywhere around that'day,
but, yes, I did, because I didn't know which oné was
Saint Patrick's Day. I remember it was the paréde.

0 Okay. And you wrote two days: after Saint
Patrick's Day -- and so when you're writing two days
after Saint Patrick's Day, is that what you mean.by the
day .of the parade? | |

A I guess. Most likely, yes.

Q So was it the day of the parade, or was it two
days after the parade or two days after*Saint Patrick's
Day or a week before the end of school when this
happened, Minor

A It was the day of the parade. I thought that
Saint Patrick's Day was around'the time of-the parade.
I thought that that's wﬁy the parade was on Sunday.

Q ‘So wheﬁ you made another written statement'and
you wrote; sometime around«March or April, 2012, that
was just a guess; right? .

A Yep.

Q And you're positive to@ay that it was the day

of the Saint Patrick's Day Parade on Hilton Head; right?

A Yes, ma'am.

Q And you're positive thét when you --
A I'm'positive.

Q

-— came home after the parade -- who was there?
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Rolayne M. Volpe, CCR, RPR
Official Court Reporter for the State of South Carolina




R
\

;
-

> W N

(e ) 6]

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21

22

23
24
25

Page 217
"State versus Gerald T. Barrett, Jr.
Jury Trial, Volume II of IV

Who was at the house? When you got home the
day of the parade on Hilton Head, who was at the house
in Bluffton when you got there?

A Me and Ta

Q Okay. So when you make a statement eaflier and
you say, I got home, and my mom was there, and her
bdyfriend Shawn was there, and Bubba was there, that was
Just a lie?
No, ma'am.
I'm sorry. What?

No, ma'am.

LOR A © B

Okay. But you did make that statement about
this case, that everybody was there when you got home?

A I mean, it is kind of hard to remember, seeing
as how that was a whole year ago.

Q Well, actually, your written statement.was made
at exacfly the time that you étarted making these
allegations, a whole lot closer to March 2012; right?

A Seems that way.

Q I have had a hard time understanding you and
hearing you,_but I believe that you said, Minor  yhen
you make the allegation that Gerald was assaulting you
downstairs on ‘the night of the parade, that while he was
assaulting you, that you were texting. I believe that's

what you said.
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A Yep. .
Q That is what you said. Okay. So while you're

being sexually assaulted, you were on your phone texting

someone; 1is that right?

A Yep.
0 And then after you are sexually assaulted
downstairs with -- in the midst .of the party, you go

upstairs to your bedroom; right?
A No. |
Q You go,upstairsAto T. ''s bedroom.. I'm
sorry. Right?
A Yep.
THE COURT: Is that a yes? Is that a yes,
Minor ?
THE WITNESS: Yes, ma'am.
THE COURT: Thank you.
Q (By Msl Campbell) _And:then you moﬁe from
T. :'s bedroom into the bedroém-with the- glass doors.

That was your bedroom; right?

A Yes, ma'am.

0 Okay. And that bedroom.has a door that locks:
right? |

A Yes, ma'am. But I was in the comfort of my own

home, so, therefore, I did not feel the need to lock my

door.

‘ Réported By:
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Q And, again, so I'm clear, you had just been

sexually aséaulted downstairs, in your home, in the
midst of the party going on, and when you get to your

room, with a door you can lock, you don't lock the door;

right?

A Nope.

Q And those doors are glass doors too, aren't
they?

A Yep.

Q People can see in that room, can't they?

A Yeah.

o) Okay. Now, Minor you said that after this

second sexual assault takes place upstairs in your
bedroom, that you get up, and you go to the bathroom,
and you are bleeding; right?

A Yep.

Q Okay. And you are bleeding. And not only are
you bleeding, you have something that you characterize
as weird white stuff on you; right?

A Uh-huh.

0 Okay. Minor was the blood also on the sheets
of your bed or just on you?

A I don't really remember. I think it was just
on me, -though.

Q Was 1t on your clothing?
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A Yep.

Q I'm sorry. What?

A Yes, ma'am.

Q Okay. So there's blood on your clothing. And
where did you put that clothing?

A In the dirfy laundry.

Q . In the dirty laundry. Did you ever see that
clothing again? |

A After I washed it.

Q Okay. Do you remember telling some people that

after you were sexually assaulted, that you had gotten
yourself back into the bed, and that you started getting

text messages from Bubba telling you to come on

downstairs?
A Yep.
Q Do you remember saying that?
A Yes, ma'am.
Q Do you have those text messages for ‘us?
A No, ma'am, I don't.
Q Did you give them to law enforcement?
A Nope.
Q Okay. Minor do you alWays calllit urinating --
A Yep. |
Q -- when you talk about going to the bathroom?
A Not always, but most of the time.
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Q Isn't urinating a word that someone supplied to
you?
A No, ma'am. We learned it in school in about
fifth grade, because I'm in honors classes.
Q And you're absolutely positive that Saint

Patrick's Day, the parade, you've been viciously
sexually assaulted to the point that you're bleeding a}l
over your clothing, that you -- about five o'clock in
the morning, that you clean yourself up, you get your
clothes on, and you get up, and you go to schocl the

next day; right?

A Yep.

Q And that Shawn takes you to school?

a Yes, ma'am.

0 Was your momma in the car-?

A No. She was sleeping. She wakes me up in the

morning, and then she goes back to sleep.

Q Okay. So you never told Assistant Solicitor
Patrick Hall that your mother and Shawn took you to
school that morning; is that right?

A I don't remember.

Q Well, you just teld this jury she didn't. Was
your mom in the car or not?

A No. I don't remember if I told him that, but

I'm pretty sure I didn't.
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1 MS. CAMPBELL: -Just one second, your Honor.
2 THE COURT: Take your time.

3 (Respite.)

4 Q (By-Ms. Campbell) Minor do you remember

5 telling one of the investigators at Hope Haven that
6 you had to see a mental health counselor for cutting

7 yourself?

8 A What does that. have to do with anything?

9 Q Well -- |

10 A That's kind of perscnal, and; yes, I do.

11 : MS. CAMPBELL: Your Honor, I'm going to ask

12 that she answer the question.

13 THE COURT: She just did.
""" 14 MS. CAMPBELL: Okay.
15 0 (By Ms. Campbell) Minor were you, before you

16 came to Bluffton, cutting yourself?

17 MS. CONCANNON: Objection; relevance.
18 THE COURT: Overruled.
19 o) (By'Ms. Campbell) Were you cutting yourself,

20  Minor You swore to tell .the truth. Were you cutting

21 yourself?

22 A Yes. But I don't see the point in you askihg
23 this.
24 Q - And were you seeing a mental health counselor

25 before you came to Bluffton in 20127
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1 A It was the guidance counselor, but, yes.

2 MS. CAMPBELL: That's all I have. Thank you.

3 THE COURT: Redirect?

4 MS. CONCANNON: Thank you, your Honor.

5 REDIRECT EXAMINATION

6 BY MS. CONCANNON:

7 o) Minor  how much blood was on your clothes?

8 A I kind of thought it was my period.

9 0 It was about the same amount as a period blood?
10 A Yep.
11 Q So it wasn't everywhere, was it?

12 A No.

(h\ 13 Q Did you wash those clothes?
~ 14 A Yes, ma'am.

15 Q Did anybody else ever see those underwear?

16 A I hid them.

17 Q You hid them? You stated a little bit ago that

18 Bubba texted you.,
19 A Uh-huh.
20 Q You don't have those texts anymore. Why did

21 you delete those?

22 A Because.
23 Q Because why?
24 A I knew that if my little sister or someone

25 were‘to go-through my phone and see that, they'd
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automatically start questioning me.
Q Why didn't you want them'to question you?
A Because I was scared, and I didn't want to talk
about it.

Q Do you remember this was around Saint Patrick's

Day of last year?

A Yes, ma'am.
'Q It happened at your home in Bluffton?
A Uh-huh.

MS. CONCANNON: I have no further questions.
‘MS. CAMPBELL: Just one oOr two,fyour-ﬁonor.
RECROSS-EXAMINATION
BY MS. CAMPBELL:
Q Minor  you said.that the underwear you were

wearing that night, that you hid them?

A In the laundry basket.
Q Where did you hide them in the house?
A In the laundry basket, underneath my clothes.

0 You hid them in the laundry basket. Okay.
Thank you;

THE COURT: ©Ladies and gentlemen, this is an
appropriate time for us to take our break. Do not bégin
your deliberations. Do not diséuss this case amongst
yourselves. You may leave your notepads in your chairs.

We'll take about 10 or 15 minutes. If you'll just let
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the bailiffs know, after you have your comfort break,
when you are ready to return.
Please rise for the jury.
Minor | " stay seated. Thank you.
(The jury is escorted from the courtroom
at 10:56 a.m.) |
THE COURT: Thank you. Be seated.

Minor | you may step down. You're free to
remain in the courtroom with us, but you're also free to
go. Thank you.

Anything before we take our mid-morning break?

MS. CONCANNON: Not from the State, your Honor.

MS. CAMPBELL: No, your Honor.

THE COURT: All right. Thank you. We're at
ease.

THE COURT: Ten minutes.

(A break is taken from 10:56 a.m. until
11:08 a.m.; at which time, the proceedings continue as
follows:)

THE COURT: Be seated. All right. Your next
witness is Ms. Twitty; 1is that correct?

MS. CONCANNON: Yes, your Honor. I wasn't sure
if outside of the presence of the jury, we wanted to
address her.

THE COURT: Tell me, based upon the victim's
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1 testimony, what it is that you plan to elicit from

2"Ms. Twitty at this time.

. 3 MS. CONCANNON: Initially, from Ms. Twitty,
4 pursuant to Kromah, just the original time/date
5 circumstance of the interview, just what Kromah will
6 allow, from the demeanor of Minor , as well as her

7 personal knowledge regarding that.
8 ~ THE.COURT:- All right.
2 MS. CONCANNON: Thén I was planning, so the
10 jury doesn't get confused, regarding her qualifications
11 as an expert, do that, then gualify her as an expert
12 regarding the behavior of and trauma of child sexual
----- ) 13 abuse victims. Minor = mentioned cutting, and she
- 14 mentiocned who.shé diéciosed to. And both of those are
15 two of the characteristics. We don't eveh have to call
16 it Child Sexual Aﬁuse Accommodation Syndrome, if that's
17 throwing people off or too confusing.
18 THE COURT: I don't think anybody's confused by
19 that térm.
20 MS. CONCANNON: . Ckay. Just common
él characteristics that she has seen in her experienée
22 dealing with child sexual abuse victims.
23 \ THE COURT:. Okay. Any last word, Ms. Cémpbell?
24 MS. CAMPBELL: Your Honor, the cutting is

25 prior to this sexual assault. So that's not relevant
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whatsoevér. -That's not a behavior that would be the
subject of any testimony from Ms. Twitty .on the child
sexual assault syndrome in relation to this matter.

If T understand the State correctly, they
wanted to use Ms. Twitty to -- to flesh out the delay in
reporting. I guestioned her not about that. I did not
go into anything to do with how long it took her to
report the sexual assault, not a single question. In
that scenario, cognizant of the fact that this syndrome
has never been approved as a field of expertise in the
state of South Carolina --

THE COURT: She's not going to use.that

.terminology.

MS. CAMPBELL: -- that this type of testimony
has never been allowed, no one's been qualified as an
expert in South Caroclina to that effect. And that even
in the jurisdictions where they have allowed it, it has
been to rehabilitate a victim --

THE -COURT: Ms. Twitty, we're talking about

‘you. : So you might as well come on in and -- so that you

understand clearly what you will be able to testify to
and not to.

THE WITNESS: Where would you like me?

THE COURT: On the witness stand.

THE WITNESS: Okay.
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MS. CAMPBELLﬁ Sﬁall I continue?

THE COURT: You may'contihue. I did not .mean
to inferrupt you;‘ I just thought this would speed up
the process. 4 -

THE WITNESS:' And, actually, I would prefer not
to testify to the Child Séxual.Abuse Accommodation
Syndrome.

THE COURT: You don't get to choose.

THE WITNESS: I don't get to choose? But‘
that's something that I'm not.

MS. CAMPBELL: Okay. So if the Court deemed it
appropriate to qualify her as fhe expert in that area,
then I would have my continuing objection to the fact
that I was only informed of that particular.testimony -

THE COURT: Uﬁlesva'm’confused, you wérén't ‘
asking to'qualify her as an expért in child ==- in that
syndrome;’correct?

MS. CONCANNON: No, your Honor. Just in what
she has experienced in her profession,. in hef counseling
with victims of child sexual abuse, pharacteristics'thaf
they share.

THE COURT: Sé what are you going to.;—.what
are you. asking to qualify hef as an expert in?

MS. CONCANNON: As a mental health

professional, working with victims, -and more
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specifically child -- children of child -- children of

sexual abuse and trauma. And there are states --

Shumpert has qualified a counselor to testify about

‘trauma that has been suffered by rape victims.

THE COURT: Are you objecting to her
qualifications as a practitioner of mental health
specifically dealing with children of child sexual
assault?

‘MS. CAMPBELL: I'm objecting to it, yes. And
I'm looking for the specific section here -- and I
apologize, as we've shifted gears a bit -- for cases
recognizing the -- mental health in this area, social
workers in particular.

Okay. So -- I guess my gquestion is: What
exactly are you, Ms. Twitty? What are your
qualifications? What degrees do you hold?

THE COURT: All right. Direct it to me. She's
not -- she's just merely --

MS. CAMPBELL: Oh, okay:

THE COURT: She's just merely there because
that's where I have chosen for her to sit.

MS. CAMPBELL: Okay. I'm sorry. So there are
several categories. One would be physicians, a nurse,
the psychologist, 'and social workers -- and I do have

all the code sections -- professicnal counselors. And
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so I guess I need more'direction from the State as to‘”
her gualifications, and then I can go from there.

MS. CONCANNON: Counselor. She's a
professional counselor of.Victimswof child sexual .abuse.

THE COURT: Is that what you're-objecting to?

MS. CAMPBELL: Yes.

THE COURT: Do you Qish to voir dire herbon her
gqualifications?

MS. CAMPBELL: I will.. Yes, I will, if I -~ I
need to grab her Curricﬁlum Vitae;

I only have, in my packet, the Curriculum Vitae
for Chris Daltén, I apologize, if I don't have the gne
for Ms. Twitty;

THE COURT: Do you happen to have your C.V.
with you?.

THE WITNESS: I do.

THE COURT: All right.:

THE WITNESS: It has notes on it.

(Document ié handed from Ms..COncannon to
Ms. Campbéll.)

THE COURT: All right. I will allow you,

Ms. Campbell, to lay the foundation for her education,
experience, before you_quélify her, in the presence of
the jury)- I will allow you to voir dire -- object;

voir dire, and then if I need ahy additional, I'll havé
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you come to the bench. I'm going to allow limited
testimony based -- and, again, it's going to depend upon
how she's qualified and what she says.

I know you're sitting right here. I know,
Ms. Twitty, I'm talking to you like you're not here --
to discuss generally behavioral evidence as to delayed
disclosure.

Note your exception to my ruling as to that.
All right? Thank you.

Anything before we bring in the jury?

MS. CONCANNON: Not from the State, your Honor.

THE COURT: How many more witnesses do you |
anticipate calling, as for scheduling purposes?

MS. CONCANNON: One. One following Ms. TQitty.

THE COURT: All right. How long do ycu
anticipate Ms. Twitty and that one witness will be?
Trying to determine our lunch schedule.

MS. CONCANNON: I think we'll be done before
nocn —-

. THE COURT: All right. And do you have -- just
for scheduling, do you have witnesses available if the
afternoon --

MS. CAMPBELL: Well, if the State does not
intend to call Investigator Adams to testify about his

work in this case, then, obviously, I will have to call
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him.

THE COURT: All right. So at a minimum, you
will have Investigator Adams --

That was not your next witness; is that
correct?

MS. CONCANNON: No, yourlHonor.

THE COURT: All right. And do you have any
other witnesses? | '

MS. CAMPBELL: Not today. I'll have to close
my case, I suppose, and discuss with my client where we
stand in terms of the alibi situation, and I mayvhave to
call Patrick Hall. So I may have two.

THE COURT: All right. You need to have

'Mr. Hall and whatever arrangements you need to make.

Right now he needs to be on call after lunch and outside
the courtrgom_d¢or. And you need -- we've evidently
moved faster than you anticipated. So your witnesses
need to be here this afternoon.

MS. CAMPBELL: Yes, ma'am.

THE COURT: Your investigator is right here.
So I have two for you right outside the door or in the
courtroom. .

MS. CAMPBELL: I'm ready to go.

THE COURT: All right. Thank you. Let's bring

in --
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MS. CONCANNON: Your Honor, briefly, before
the jury gets in, so we don't have any confusion.
Ms. Twitty's testimony will initially regard the Kromah
factors for Minor ' interview. Then I will qualify her
to avoid any confusion. Then we will go into the
testimony regarding her qualifications as an expert.

THE COURT: If that's how you choose to do it.
I don't know why you need to do it that way. But if
that's how you are choosing to @P it, I'm not telling
you how to control your case.

MS. CAMPBELL: And the second portion is only
related to delayed disclosure?

THE COURT: That's the only thing that I have
understood --

MS. CAMPBELL: Okay.

THE COURT: -- that there is an issue about.

MS. CAMPBELL: All right.

THE COURT: All right. But to protect
your record, you need to object if there's anything
objectionable. Thank you.

Let's bring in the jury.

(The jury is escorted into the courtroom
at 11:19 a.m.)

THE COURT: Thank you. Be seated.

All right. Ms. Twitty is on the stand. Please
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swear her in. ’

THE DEPUTY CLERK OF COURT: Yes, ma'am. Would
you please raise your right hand for me. ‘

(The oath is administered by the Deputy Clerk
of Court, and the witness answers as follows:)

THE WITNESS: I do.

THE DEPUTY CLERK OF COURT: Thank you. Would
you state your name and spell it for the Court?

THE WITNESS: Certainly. Kendra Twitty,
T-w-i-t-t-vy. \

‘THE COURT: Ms. Concannon.

MS. CONCANNON: Thank you, your Honor.

KENDRA TWITTY,

having been first duly sworn by the Deputy Clerk of
Court to tell the.truth, the whole truth, and nothing
but the truth, was examined and testified upon her oath
as follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MS. CONCANNON:

Q Kendra, where are you currently employed?

A I'm currently employed at Hope Haven.

Q What is'Hopé Haven? | .

A Hope Haven is a children's advocacy center and

rape crisis center, and we serve the 14th Circuit.

Q What are some of your duties as an employee at
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Hope Haven?
A I am a forensic interviewer at Hope Haven, and

I'm also a counselor/therapist at Hope Haven. So I work
with children that have‘been sexually abused.

MS. CAMPBELL: Objection, your Honor. I
objected to her being -- terminology of forensic
interviewer. And I believe that we had --

THE COURT: All right. WNo speaking objections.
What are you objecting -~ what is the basis of your
objection?

MS. CAMPBELL; Under Kromah, I believe she's
not qualified as a forensic interviewer. She's not a
forensic interviewer.

THE COURT: All right.

THE WITNESS: That's what I do for my job.

THE COURT: Okay. When .there's an objection,
you need to stop talking until I rule on it.

THE WITNESS: All right.

THE COURT: Thank you.

MS. CONCANNON: We're not qualifying her as an
expert forensic -- as a forensic interviewer. That's
just part of her job duties.

THE COURT: All right. Overruled. Thank you.
You may continue.

MS. CONCANNON: ' Thank you, your Honor.
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Q (By Ms. Concannon) Are you familiar with an
interview involviﬁé'Mhmr ? ‘
A I am.
Q Do you know.the time and. date and the
circumstances surrouﬁding that iﬂterview?
A We received a referral from the.Beaufort County
Sheriff's Office to interview Minor on July 20th,

2012, and the time of the interview was at two o'clock.

Q Who conducted this interview?
A I was the interviewer.
Q Was there anybody in the room with you during

this interview?

A ' When I interview children, it's myself and the
child, and law enforcement watches the interview from a
ciosed—circuitVtelevision. So a victim advocate from
Hope Haven and a law enforcement officer is in another
room watchihg_the interview.

Q What were your peréonal observations of Minor '
behavior and demeanor during this interview? ‘

A Okay. Minor ‘came in, very quiet and shy and
closed and guarded. I could barely kind of hear her.
She was soft-spoken. And once I was building some
rapport with her; which is part of the process of -- of
the interview technique that wé use, she became a little

bit more comfortable and started talking more, and I
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could hear her better. And then when we got to the

abuse~related questions or scenario, when it was time

w N

for -- when I asking her open-ended questions, she kind

(=N

of shut down, got really quiet. And, actually, at that
point, I asked her if she would like to write down
whatever it is that she wanted to say. And she said,

yes, that she would like to write down the answers to

o J o U»

some of my questions.
9 Q Was she ever able to verbalize toryou what she
10 wrote down?
11 A She was -- when I ask children if they would
12 like %o write it down, I tell them, after you write
< ™ 13 this, I'm going to read it, and then we're going to talk
‘‘‘‘‘ ' 14 about it, and I'm going to ask that you talk about it
15 with me. So she then talked about what she wrote down.
16 Q What was her body language like during this
17 interview?
18 - A Her posture was slouched, her affect was flat.
19 She was -- she appeared to be shy and sad, confused.
20 You know, she presented as someone that was not
21 comfortable talking about an uncomfortable topic.
22 Q Did she ever cry during this interview?
23 A To be honest, I'm not sure if she cried during
24 the interview or not. She may have become teary-eyed.

25 But I interview so many kids, that I don't recall if she
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cried or not.

Q But she wasn't able to spéak throughout the
entire interview, was she? ‘

A Correct.b She shut down when I asked about the

" abuse.. |

Q She was evehtually able to -- to write or
verbalize what happened?

A That's correct.

Q Okay. I'm going to shift gears a little bit.

A Okay. ‘ : ’

Q Can you .tell us a little bit about your
education? |

A Sure. :I went to Ithaca College in Ithaca, New

York. .Graduated in '98,-§nd then I came down south and
went to the Georgia School of Professional Psychology,
which is now called Argosy, and graduated with a
clinical psychology -- a master's in clinical psyéhology
there in 2004. And that's my equcation experience, as
far as degrees.

o) Do you have any professional licenses?

A I do. I'm a licensed professional counselor
in South Carclina. And in ordef to become a licensed
professional counselor, you do two years of direct
cliniéal supervision under a psychologist or a licensed

supervisor. And then you do 1500 hours of -- I'm sorry
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-— 1300 hours of direct client supervision with your
counseling clieﬁts.

Q | Do you only work with children, or do you\work
with adults as well?

A I focus mainly on children. I work with

adults, in the sense that I work with the parents and

the family, so -- but my specialty and training is in
children, adolescents. !

Q You said your specialty in training. Have you
had some specialized training?

A - I have. Starting in 2000, I have been
attending trainings concerning child sexual abuse and
the emerging issues and research and findings and skills
and behaviors and symptoms for working with childreﬁ
that have been abused.

In 2006, I took a little break from that
profession, went into private practice, and came back
into the profession this past -- this last summer, and
went back to a week-long training in Minnesota and then
in Columbia to refresh my'—— to keep up-to-date with the
current trends in child sexual abuse. I found that
pretty much still the same since 2000. And so,
basically, those are the -- the trainings that I

completed certificate for attending. I guess,

-continuing education kind of things.
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Q What is your professional .experience’'in dealing

with children?

‘A Okay. Starting in 2000 is when I started at
the Hope -- Hope Haven, which is. the Children's Advocacy
Center. And I have been working with children that have
been sexually abused since 2000. It may -- it may not
have been at Hope Haven.  When I was in private ‘
practice, I did a lot of work with adults that were
diéclosing child sexual abuse, and then a lot of ‘
children in the school system that were disclosing any
type of trauma related to sexual abuse or physical

abuse. So I would say since 2000.

Q Have you ever testified in court before?

A I have, but it was &a long ‘time ago.

Q Do 'you know roughly how many timés ydu'#e
testified? | '

A I've testified mostly in family court, and
probably four, maybe -- I'm guessing four or five times

in criminal court.
Q Okay. Have you ever been qualified as an
expert in any of these proCeedings?
A I have. ‘
MS. CONCANNON: Okay. At this point, I would
move to admit Ms;rTwitty as an éxpert as a mental health

professional working with victims of child sexual abuse
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and_trauma.
THE COURT: Any objection?
MS..CAMPBELL: I do object, your Honor.
/ THE COURT: All right. You may voir dire.
MS. CAMPBELL: Thank you.
VOIR DIRE
BY MS. CAMPBELL:

Q Ms. Twitty, you said you had been qualified as
an expert previously. Do you have any idea whether that
was in family court or in criminal court?

A I believe it was in family court.

Q So you've never been qualified as an expert in
this area in criminal court, with these types of
proceedings, have you?

A I -- honestly, I can't answer that. I'm not
sure if I've been qualified as an expert or not. I know
that I've testified, but I'm not sure if that was a
fact-finding person or an expert.

Q Okay. And, specifically, the focus of your
training and your practice and your experience is in
interviewing children and -- and working in child abuse
situations; is that correct?

A That's correct. Not just interviewing, but
also working with kids that have disclosed already about

sexual abuse.
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Q And in terms of the techniques that you use and

things of that nature;>you've never been in a positionJ

to testify on behalf of a defendant as an expert;

. correct? It's always just the State that you're working

with?
A I've been called about .that, and I have never
testified on the defense side, no.

MS. CAMPBELL: -Okay. I have no further
questions. o

| THE. COURT: All right. Are you étill
objecting?
| MS. CAMPBELL: I am. »

THE COURT: Ms. Concannon, specifically, you
want her to testify as an expert in what area?

MS. CCNCANNON: As a mental health
professional, working with children victims of sexual
abuse, characteristics, and trauma. |

THE COURT: As a mental health professional =--

MS. CONCANNON: 'Wbrking with victims of child
sexual abuse and trauma. |

More so in thelcharacteristics and the behavior

that she has seen in her counseling experiences through

the years of being a child sexual abuse counselor.

THE COURT: Anything else?

MS. CQNCANNON: No, your Honqr.
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Just specifically about child sexual abuse
victim characteristics and their behaviors.

THE COURT: Ladies and gentlemen, normally a

person cannot give opinion testimony. Typically, when a

person testifies, they must testify as to either what
they heard or saw or sensed by smell or something of
that nature. There is an exception in our laws if
someone 1s qualified because of their edugation and
experience. They are permitted to give their opinion
in certain areas if the Court qualifies them in that
way. This witness will be qualified in the area
of -- as a mental health professional, specifically in
the area of child sexual abuse characteristics and
behavior, to give opinion testimony in that area. That
does not mean that you must accept the opinion. It is
simply evidence for you to use in any way that you see
fit.

Note your exception to the qualification,
Ms. Campbell. Thank you.

MS. CAMPBELL: Thank you.

MS. CONCANNON: Thank you, your Honor.

FURTHER DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MS. CONCANNON:
o} Briefly, back to Minor ' specific interview,

did she indicate to you the time and place this all
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oecufred?

A She indicated the place, and she was at her
mother's house.

0 Okay. When was your interview with Minor ?

A It was on-July 20th, 2012.

Q Among child abuse professionals, what
is -- what is meant-by the term delayed disclosure?

A Okay. In the 13 years that I've been doing

this, first off, I find that kids usually never tell.
And there's a lot of reasons why kids ne&er tell:
Because it's such an uncomfortable thing to tell,
fear-driven. Kids -- even research shows that kids
usually tell when they're adults. But as far as delayed
disclosure, kids may not tell because of threat of the
perpetrator; they may ﬁot tell because of shame, feeling
like it's their fault, they blame themselves, tpey‘re
embarrassed; they mey fear that they're not going to be
believed by telling; they ﬁay not feel like there's ever
an opportunity that's é good time; they may fear that
they tell, and it rips their family apart, or that this

person that may have done -- or this person that has

‘done something to them may be really close to their

family. It may be eomeone that they're related to; it
may be a caregiver; it may be a friend of the family.

And so telling is a pretty big deal, as far as
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children disclosing. So a délayed disclosure is a very
common thing in the child sexual abuse field. And a lot
of times kids disclose accidentally or purposefully.
Accidentally usually is the little ones. They, by
accident, tell, because they don't know not to tell.
And, purposefully, usually teenagers tell purposefully
when they either feel safe or they have a time when
they're hanging out with their peers, which is -- when
you are a teenager, your peers are your world, and you
start talking and you disclose on purpose. So that's.--

Q You mentioned their peers. Why would they
disclose to these -peers?

A Well, when you‘are an adoclescent, your peers
are your world, and that's who you feel safe with. And
so it's typical that I find, being at Hope Haven, that
kids usually tell their peers. And then the grown-ups,
the adults, the caregivers are usually the last people
to find out, and it's really hard for caregivers to
understand that.

Q What are -- can you maybe explain some family.
dynamics that could affect a child disclosing later?

A Sure. As far as family dynamics, kids were
taught -- kids are taught to listen to adults. They are

taught to respect their mom and their dad and their

authority figures. And so telling something that might
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hurt someone iﬁ the family or a friend of the family is
a lot of pressure on that -- that child.

So, again, that delayed disclosure of telling
what happens, I find, in my work, is that the kids tell,

and the family explodes, and then the kids recant, which

means: Oh, wait, I didn't mean that. That's -- that

really didn't happen. So recantation is very common
when children disclose child sexual abuse.

Q What are some -- based on your professional
experience, some of the different time frames that may
be included in delayed disclosure?

A Disclosure is a process, number one. Kids
usually don't just blurt out everything. So, firét,
it's a tentative phase, where they tell a little bit to
test out the waters, fo see how the grown-ups are going
to respond, see 1if they're kept safe. And if there's
someone that's going to listen them and believe them,
then most typically they move into an active phase of
disclosure, where they usually start telling-all the
information. \

Sometimes kids will stay in that tentative
phase for years, for months, for weeks. ItAdepends if
they get therapy or not. So those -- you know, the
disclosure process i1s different for each adolescent or

child or person.
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Q Regarding the disclosure, is it -- do
children necessarily recall in a particular order the
chronological series of the events when they are
disclosing?

A Disclosing, as I said, is a process. A lot of
the times children are traumatized. It depends on if
they're having chronic abuse,  which means they've been
abused from the agé of 6-to 16, or they have acute
abuse, which they've had either one incident of a sexual
assault or two incidents or three incidents. You know,
those are considered acute cases. So depending on‘what

type of trauma or what type of abuse, if it was chronic

or acute -- I'm sorry, I forgot what I WAS asked --
the --
Q - The-chronological series --
A The chronological series is, it depends, again,

if it's chronical, there's so much to tell. So it's
hard for their memory, I find, in my profession, because
of the trauma to recall the certain dates, times, events
in chronological order because of the trauma and the
paralyzing effect that trauma can have during -~ during
a scary time for a child.

Q In your experience, why -- why are children
scared to disclose? |

A Children are scared to disclose, I think, for
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the reasons I said befdre, as far as being fearful of
all the consequences of ‘what happens in disclosing.

MS. CONCANNON: I have né'further questions for
this witness at this time.

MS. CAMPBELL: . May it please the Court?

THE COURT: Yes, ma'am. .

CROSS—EXAMINAIION

BY MS. CAMPBELL: '

Q Ms. Twitty, isn't it true that when you talked
with Minor  that you received information that her
allegations against Gerald Barrett were two tovthree
days after Saint. Patrick's Day? Isn't that wha£ she
told you?

y:\ I believe she said it was sometime around
Saint Patrick's Day, two to three days after. And
usually when a child or adolescent or person is having
an event -- a traumatic event, sometimes theyill hang
onto a significant detail, like a holiday or birthday
party or somefhing like that.

Q Didn't you have her write it down for you?

A I wrote on -- I believe that you're holding the
piece of paper that she wrdte dowﬁ the disclosure,

Q Right.

A Right. And then I wrote notes on that while we

- were talking.
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" Q And on the paper --
A Okay.
Q -- 1t says after Saint Patty's Day. Two days
after Saint Patty's day: right?
A If that's what -- I don't have it. So I'm
SOrry.
MS. CAMPBELL: May I approach, your Honor?
THE "COURT: You may.
MS. CAMPBELL: Thank you.
(Document is handed to the witness.)
Q (By Ms. Campbell) This is the -- a statement
that you -- you had her generate for you, to pin down a

date and a time for her allegations; right?

A That's correct. This is what she told me at
that time.

Q. And what did she say? What does it say ther??

A It says, two days after Saint Patty's Day,

March or April, 2012.
Q QOkay. Thank you.
MS. CONCANNON: Objection. Is Ms. Campbell
moving the statement into evidence?
THE COURT: No.
Q (By Ms. Campbell) Now, Ms. Twitty,'you've
testified that in your experience, you -- you note

things like shyness and sadness-and confusion and not
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being comfortable in young people that you talk to about
situations of abuse; right?

A Yes, ma'ém..

Q Okay. And isn't it true that it would seem,
well, a little bit odd br different that someone who is
shy, and reticent to disclose, not being comfortable
with the disclosure would also be someone, at 14, that

was wearing a tattoo? Wouldn't that be a little bit

off?
A I don't see>the ;elevance,
Q Okay. Well, she had a tatoo. You méde note of
the tattoo. You made note that she was under the age of

18, shouldn't have a tattoo, but yet she had one; right?

A I believe -- that's what we —- yeah, I believe
talking abdut that in the interview. I was trying to
build A rapport with her so she felt comfortable.

o] Now, having been qualified in as an expert in
this area, are you familiar with the report froh the
National -Children's Advocacy Center on recantation and
false allegations of child abuse and child sexﬁal
assault? Are you familiar with this?

A I have done so much reading that I would have
to look at it to éay if I'm familiar with it or not.

MS. CAMPBELL:; I'd be happy to approach and

provide it to her.
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THE COURT: You may. -
-MS. CAMPBELL: Thank you. .

(Document is handed to the witness.)
THE WITNESS: - Page 97 » .

Q " (By Ms. Campbell) Not necessarily page 9. The
entire report, which deals with what you're an expert
in; right?

A I have not read this entire report, but I have
been to trainings that have talked about this report.

MS. CAMPBELL: Thank you. May I approach and
retrieve it?.

THE COURT: You may.

MS. CAMPBELL: Thank you.

(Document is handed back to Ms. Campbell.)

Q (By Ms. Campbell) Ms. Twitty, young people
lie, don't that?

A Absolutely. Young and old people lie.

Q Well, you don't deal with old people; you deal
with young people? Right?

A I deal with their parents. So.

Q Okay. Interesting. You're not a human lie
detector, are you?

A I am certainly nét a human lie detector.

Q All right. So you don't know when somebody is

telling you the truth, do you?
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A I do not know.
Q Okay. All right. And so all you do is just

take notes about what you are told; right?

A I would disagree with that.
Q Okay. And what you were told was that two to
three days -- or two dayslafter-Saint Patty's Day this

alleged sexual assault took place against Minor  right?
And she told you that; right?
A She told me that.

Q Okay. And other than that, you don't know

anything about -- else about this case today to help us;
right?

A Can you restate what you just asked me?

Q You don't know anything'else about thié

case? .You can talk on and on about shyness and being
uncomfortable and all those things; but this case,
you know when she says it happened, and that's it;
right? ‘
A Well, I know what she told me, and I know that
based on —-
MS. CAMPBELL: Your Honor, I'm going to‘object_
to that. That's not -- | B
THE COURT: All right. Counsel, thap‘s not the
way we do it. So you need to rephrase your question.

MS. CAMPBELL:. Okay.
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MS. CONCANNON: Can Ms. Twitty answer the
question?
" THE COURT: I'm sorry?
MS. CONCANNON: Can Ms. Twitty answer the
qguestion?
THE COURT: 1I'm going to let her rephrase the
question.
Ms. Twitty, if you need to respond further --
I'm going to let her rephrase her question. If you need
to respond further, YOu may. Thank you.
. MS. CAMPBELL: Thank you, your Honor.
Q (By Ms. Campbell) We've established,
Ms. Twitty, that you are -- you're not a -- you're not a

diagnosis [sic] for this; right?

A Correct.

Q You give no diagnosis?

A Correct.

Q  You get a date; you get a time? Right?

A I get details of the event.

Q -Right. And the date and the time that you

were gi&en in this case, specifically, was two days
after Saint Patrick's Day, 2012} right?

A I believe it said two to three days, either
April or March, 2012, is what I had written.

Q And so as you're getting the information about
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the date and time, because it's very important, you've
got this broad range of time between March and April;
right? And by the end of your'interview, you have
narfowed it down ‘to two days after Saint Patrick's
Day? It's what that piece of paper said;.didn't'
it? |

A I wouldn't necessarily say narrowed it down,
but T asked the child to tell me when she thinks it
happened. But at the time of the interview, that wasn't
our main focus. - My interyiew focus is to assess the
overall safety of a child; Like, I want to rule out ail
hypotheses. I am not going in there looking for fact
details to prove . or .not prove child sexual abuse. My
hope is that kids aren't sexually abused, because that's

what I would hbpe. So I was.

Q The paper says between March and April 2012;
right? _ '

A I asked her when she thought it would ha?pen.

Q ( Right. |

A -- or when she thought'it happened.

Q Right. We've got a broad two-month time frame,

but by the end of your talking to her is down to March

19th, 2012; right?

A I don't know about March 19th. She said two to

three days after Saint Patty's Day.
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-MS. CAMPBELL: Thank you. I have nothing else.
THE WITNESS: Okay.
MS. CONCANNON: Thank you, your Honor.
REDIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MS. CONCANNON:

0 Ms. Campbell just asked you a little bit about

the interview that you conducted with Minor . She
" stated that -- she showed you a piece of paper. Okay.
When -- when was that piece of paper drafted? When did

you get ahold of that piece of paper?
A That piéce of paper was -- I gave Minor .a
piece of paper when she shut down on me. And so as
an interviewer, I try to offer other avenues for
children to -- to disclose. And I say: Would you feel
more comfortable writing this? And so I gave her the
piece of paper, and that was the piece of paper that was
just’ shown to me. She wrote down some of what happened
to her.
MS. CONCANNON: Permission to approach the
witness, your Honor?
THE CQURT: You may.
Q (By Ms. Concannon) Ms. Twitty, I'm going to
show you.what's been previously marked as State's
Exhibit 11.

(Document  is shown to the Ms. Campbell:)
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(Document i1s handed to the witness.)
Q (By Ms: Concannon) Do you recognize that piece
of paper?
A I do.
o) What is that?
A This is the paper that Minor wrote down for

me, when I asked her what happened and she shut.down and
didn't talk and we sat there a litfle bit in silence,
this is what she started writing.

Q Is all of that her handwriting?

A No. My notes are in purple.

Q When did you add your nopes?

A I addedvﬁy notes towardslthe end of the
interview, when I was asking about when she thinks it
happened.

MS. CONCANNON: OQOkay. Thank you.

Permission to publish to the jury and admit
State's Exhibit 11 into evidence?

MS. CAMPBELL: I would object to that as being
entered into evidence, your Honor . .It’sdﬂmm '
statement, and she's trying to get it entered through
Ms. Twitty --

THE COURT: All right. Cdunsel'approach;

(Ms. Campbell, Ms. Concannon, and Mr. Shelton

approach the bench for a side-bar.)
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THE COURT: State's 11 into evidence over your
objection. Thank you.

MS. CAMPBELL: Thank you.

MS. CONCANNON: Thank you, your Honor.

(State's Exhibit No. 11 is admitted into
evidence.)

MS. CONCANNON: Permission to publish
State's 11 to the jury?

THE COURT: You may.

MS. CONCANNON: Thank you, your Honor.

(State's Exhibit 11 is published to the
jury.)

0 (By Ms. Concannon) Ms. Twitty, Ms. Campbell

asked you a question about you -- you knowing nothing

but the date and time c¢f the alleged incident. Did

Minor tell you anything else?
A She disclosed to me what happened.
Q When you say she disclosed to you what

happened, what did she say?

MS. CAMPBELL: Your Honor, I'm objecting.

THE COURT: What's your basis?

MS. CAMPBELL: That goes past the parameters of
the Supreme Court ruling in Kromah.

THE COURT: All right. Maybe you didn't

understand. Speaking objection; one word.‘\Please
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approach.

(Mr. Shelton, Ms. Campbell, and Ms. Concannon

.all approéch the bench for side-bar.)

'~ THE COURT: - Please rephrase your question.
MS. CONCANNON: Thank you, your Honor.

Q (By Ms. Concannon) What else did Minor tell
you?

A We talked a little bit about her family. We
talked a little bit about what she likes to do for fun.
We talked about who she hangs out; what she likes to do
at school. She loves schocl. Kind of neutral, finding
out about her life, detailé.

Q What did she tell you about Saint Patrick's Day
last year? |

A What I have in my report is, when asked about
the date of when this happened Qith,Bubba, Minor
reported that .-she thinks it was two or three days after
Saint Patrick's Day. And that's all that I had asked
her about, as far as Saint Patrick's Day.

Q What did shé éay what acts happened arouhd
Saint Patrick's Day?

A ‘The acts that she stated that happened is that
she was at her mom's house, hanging out with her mom,
hanging out with her friends. She reported that Bubbka

came over to her mom's house, and they were all hanging
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out outside. She stated that she was inside watching
TV, when Bubba came inside the house and sat next to her
on the couch. She stated that she moved from the couch
to the chair to get away from him, but he followed her
to the chair and sat down with her.

MS. CAMPBELL: Your Honor, I object again.

Same basis as before.

THE COURT: Overruled.

THE WITNESS: Can I continﬁe?

THE COURT: Yes.

THE WITNESS: Okay. Minor appeared to become
uncomfortable talking about what happened next. This is
when she shut down. The interviewer asked Minor to
write down what happened. This is When she wrote down
that green stuff, the green marker. Minor wrote down

what happened, and the interviewer read it out loud to

Minor . Please see letter in file.
Minor reported that Bubba touched her -- her
private area -- that's what she called her breasts --

underneath her clothes, and that he touched her private

area, 1s what she called her vagina. She stated that

Bubba creeped -- quote, creeped her out and told him to
get away, but he would not get away. Minor went
upstairs with her little sister T and then fell

asleep. She stated that she got up and went into her
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rocm around 4:30 a.m., and that she could hear someone
coming up the stairs. Minor stated that Bubba. came

into her room, laid down in her bed with her. Minor

_stated that she asked Bubba what he was doing, and that

he told her not to worry about it.

She reported that Bubba told her not to tell
anyone about what he was doing. Minor reported that
Bubbé put his private part inside her private part, and
thét it felt painful. She reported that éhe thought she
was dying, and that she was crying. She stated that she
felt helpless. Minor reported that Bubba held hervarms
out to her side when he was on top of her and when his
private part, hié pénis; went inside her private part,
vagina. | |

Minor stated that Bubba's shirt was on and
that his pants were pulled halfway down. She stated
that she was wearing a pajama shirt. Minor stated that

Bubba got off of her when he heard a noise. She stated

. that he went downstairs and sent her a text to come

downstairs. Mmm‘ reported that she went into the
bathroom, locked the door, and took a shower. _She
stated that she was bleeding, and that when she went
pee, white stuff waé coming out of her on the tissue

paper.
When asked about the date of when this happened
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with Bubba, Minor reported that she thinks it was two
to three days after Saint Patrick's Day.

Q (By Ms. Concannon) What is the date of that
report, when yéur interview was conducted?-

A This was on July 20th, 2012.

Q 201272 What Saint Patrick's Day was she
referring to? What year?

A I'm assuming she was referring to this Saint

Patrick's Day. Because she said March or April 2012.
MS. CONCANNCN: Okay. I have no further
guestions for this witness.
THE COURT: Ms. Campbell.
.MS. CAMPBELL: Thank you, your Honor.
RECROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MS. CAMPBELL: -
Q Ms. Twitty, ycu're familiar with something

called the Child Sexual Abuse Accommodation Syndrome;

right?
A I'm familiar with it, yes.
0 But you're no expert in that; right?
A I'm not an expert in it.
Q And you Jjust testified to factors under the

Child Sexual Abuse Accommddation Syndrome, haven't you,
about delayed reporting; right?

A  Correct.
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Q Okay. And ybu're no expert, but you're
testifying about that; right?
A ~Well, the Child Sexual Abuse Accommodation

Syndrome 1is categories, five categories of typical
behaviors that professionals see in children that are
sexually abused. So it's a theory.

Q  Right. And yoﬁ're not an expert, but you've
talked about it; correct?

A Well, I feel that I'm an expert in the
categories of the -- that they talk about in the Child
Sexual Abuse Accpmmodation Syndrome, as far as what I do

in my profession.

0 But you've not been qualified in that --

A Correct. - ‘

Qv S - in that by this Couft; correct?

A I'm sorry. .Correct.

Q Okay. Now, you're familiar, also, then, with

the fact that this particular type of testimony has
been found to be very problematic and even referred to
sometimes as pseudosciencé; right?

A What type of testimony? The child sexual --

Q. The type of testimony that you're giving.

A My professional Opinioﬁ and my experience? I'm
sorry. I don't understand the question. |

Q All right. Well, are you familiar with the
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Children's Law Center?
A Yes. -That's where I've been trained>quite a

bit, yeah.

Q And at the Children's Law Center, they put out
a report. about this delayed disclosure thing- that you're
talking about; right?

A Yes.

0 ‘And in there,;don’t they characterize it. as
typically occurring in children' and adolescents who have
suffered years of repeated abuse? Would you like me to
pass this up to you?

A Sure. Well, I think that's when we talked

about the different types of abuse, as far as chronic

abuse --

MS. CAMPBELL: May I approach?
THE COURT: You may.
- THE WITNESS: -- and acute abuse, meaning the

sexual assault happened.

Q (By Ms. Campbell): This is the paragraph here.
A Okay. Right. |

Q -Okay. |

A That's for the accommodation syndrome that

they're talking about. ‘

0 Delayed 'disclosure, which you've testified

about; right?
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A Well, de;ayédxdisclosureiiﬁ geﬁéral just 'isn't

part of that syndrbme{ Therefs;sométhinq just called

delayed .disclosure.

0 Okay. Well, in 1983, Dr. Summit -- Ronald

~Summit -- you're familiar with him; right?
. A “Correct. _
Ne) Okay. And‘thoseffactors.that he‘puté ouf

there, delayed discloseiis'one Gf Ehe factors; right?
A It is one of>the féctor;} d
0  And the Children's'LanCehter, that has traihed
you, has said: that délayed disclosure is commonplace,
typically repﬁrted[in cdnjunétidn with years of repeatea
abuse; correct? | o
A Cofrect. A .
MS. CAMPBELL: . ALl right. Thank you. That's
allvi have. |
THE COURT: 'All ‘right.: You may step down.:
Thank you. ‘ V
‘Call. your ﬁéxt—witnessi
THE WiTNESS: I'm ready?
THE COURT: You're done. TTﬁénk you}'
. MS. CONCANNON& Thank you, your Honor.
‘THE WITNESS: Thank you.
MS. CONCANNON: State calls Kristin Dalton.

THE COURTROOM DEPUTY CLERK: Would you place

‘ ~Reported By: =~ =
Rolayne M. Volpe, CCR, RPR
Official Court Reporter for the State of South Carolina



1= w - [

o

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22

23

24
25

: Page 265
State versus Gerald T. Barrett, Jr.
Jury Trial, Volume II of IV

your left hand on the Bible and raise your right hand
for me, please, ma'am.

(The ocath is' administered by the Deputy Clerk
of Court, and the witness answers as follows:)

THE WITNESS: - I do.

THE DEPUTY CLERK OF COURT: Please be
seated. State your name and spell it for the Court,
please.

THE WITNESS: My name is Kristin Dalton,
K~-r-i-s-~t-i-n, Dalton, D-a-l-t-o-n.

MS. CONCANNON: Thank you, your Honor.

KRISTIN DALTON,

having been first duly sworn by the Deputy Clerk of
Court to tell the truth, the whole fruth, and nothing
but the truth, was examined and testified upon her oath
as follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MS. CONCANNON:

Q What is your profession right now, Kristin?
A I'm a pediatric nurse practitioner.
Q What is your education to become a pediatric

nurse practitioner?
A I went to four years of undergraduate school to
become a nurse, and then practicéd for ten years, and

went back to graduate school. 1In three years, got my
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master's degree and took a national certifying board

exam, and became a nurse practitioner.

Q Where are you employed currently?-

A Beaufort Pédiatrics.

Q Do you hold any professional licenses?

A I do. I have a DEA license, an R.N. license,

and an advanced practice nurse license.- -

Q Have you ever attended any specialized
training?
A I have. Starting in 2004, I became a member of

a group in the state of South Carolina. There are.lé of
us médical providers who are specialized in child
maltreatment. I’started receiving training in that'area
in 2004; when I went out to Utah fbr a week-long medicél
training there. And then another week in Minnesota, a
year later; four days in Atlanta a year after that; and
then I've done annual child maltreatment medical |
conferences ever since.

Q You predominantly work with children?

A Only with children.

Q You never work with adults?
A No. Anyone under 21. Twenty-one would be the

oldest.
Q What. would bring a patient to you, a child

patient -to you?
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A Well, in my role as a nurse practitioner at

Beaufort Pediatrics, I function in the same manner as a
pediatrician. I see children for their well checks and
for their sick visits. If they're sick enough and need
to be admitted to the hospital, admit them and follow
them in the hospital.

0] Are you ever cailed to examine any children
regarding reports of sexual assault abuse?

A Yes, I am.

0 And how many people in the state of South
Carolina have your same position as reporting when
there's an allegation of child sexual abuse?

A Well, éurrently, there's 16 people in our
state who are qualified and designated as medical
experts to examine children who are victims of abuse
and sexual -- maltreatment. So neglect, physical abuse,
and sexual abuse. This is a group that started -- in
2004, it was created. We have a director, Dr. Olga
Rosa, who is a pediatrician, who is also a child
maltreatment Board-certified expert. And the 16 of us
created the policies and procedures for doing these
exams, for maintaining continuing education. We meet
quarterly in Columbia for peef review and continuing
education. This has been going on since -- for the last

ten years.
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Q What are some of the procedures or policies

regarding these examinations of a child sexual abuse
victim? _

:\ Well, there are two different kinds of exams.
There are whét's»feferred to as an acute exam. When a
child has been sexually assaulted and you're looking for
DNA evidence, you can‘usuaily get DNA if it's been léss
than 24 hours since the asséult. So those acute exams
are done infrequently, because it's not very common that
we figure this out that quickly, that someone has been
assaulted, a child. |

Then there are what's called chronic exams.
And the chronic exams are done any time a child has'
disclosed sexual abuse. One of the 16 of ué in the
state will do the exam, where we are examining them for
multiple purposes. To see if there's any trauma, any

evidence of physical trauma, to see if there are any

'sexually transmitted infections they may have acquired,

and, in-general,_to_reassure the child that their body
is okay. »

Q It would only be one of the 16 of y'all that
would conduct these examinations?

A To my knowledge, there's nobody else that's
certified to do that in our state.

Q ° Have you ever testified in court before?
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A ‘Yes, I have.

Q Do you know how many times you've testified?

A Probably about 18 or 20.

Q Have you testified in criminal court?

A Yes.

Q Have you ever been qualified as an expert
before?

A I have.

MS. CONCANNON: At this point, I move to
qualify Ms. Dalton as an expert in the trauma and
physical symptoms following child sexual abuse.

THE COURT: Ms. Campbell.

MS. CAMPBELL: I have no objection.

THE COURT: She willfbe so gualified. Thank
you.

MS. CONCANNON: Thank you, your Honor.

Q (By Ms. Concannon) You mentioned when. you do
these examinations, there are two different types that
you do when you look for trauma. What is some trauma
that‘can be found in a victim that's suffered sexual
abuse?

A For sexual abuse, the chance of physical
findings are incredibly, incredibly small. Right now
the national statistics state that about 3 percent or

less of children who are sexually abused will have
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1 physical findings. The reasons are myriad, but mainly

2 because that area of the body is very rapid to heal.
3 And also, it's difficult to injure that area of the
4  body. |

5 One of the wéys_to think about it is, the
6 genitalia, the vaginal area of a female, is similar
7 tissue to the inside of your mouth. So if you bite

8 your cheek and it hurts a lot and it bleeds, and you

9 might have difficulty eating for a day or two, when you

10 go and look in the mirror and look at your cheek, you're
11 not going to see where you bit yourself, énd you're not

12 going to see a scar. And there's nobody walking around

13 today who can say, this is where I bit myself when I was
""""" 14 - five, and this is where I bit myself a month ago.

15 So the female genitalia heals very, very.

16 rapidly. It is also a tremendous misconception that

17 goes around in the general public about the shape of the
18 female body and the hymen and what that piece of tissue
19 can do when somebody has had sex, whether it's

20 consensual or nonqonsensual. So everyone thinks that

21 you can dd a virginity test, that you can look at a

22  woman or a teenager and see if they've had sex before.
23 That is absolutely false, and the;e are multiple studies
24 out there that show that that's,félse.

25 I have found, in my professional experienée,
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that my statistics of findings are about what the
national statistics are, which is certainly less than 5
percent of the girls I examine will have physical
findings. And I'm not talking just about the sexually
abused children. I'm talking about -- I do gynecology,
pediatric gynecology and'pelvic‘exams and STD testing
for teenagers, and I've been doing it for 20 years. And
a huge number of them, far more than 50 percent, don't
have any findings in their hymen to shgw that they've
been consensually sexually active.

So the -- another reason for that is not only
that trauma heals quickly, but the hymen, which is sort
of a doughnut-shaped, very thin piece of tissue that's
right at the entrance of the vagina -- so if you think
of a tube having this thin membrane around it. This

membrane is similar to a rubber band. It's very, very

-elastic. So if you were handed a bag of rubber bands,

and you pulled one out and you stretched it, and then
you put it back in the bag, and you asked someone to
tell you which rubber band did you stretch, they're not
going to be able to do that.

This is the same way the hymen is. It can
stretch. And children -- young children can be victims
of penile vaginal penetration and have no evidence, that

can stretch and not have been injured at all, or injury
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can heal very rapidly.

0 Would there be signs of an injury to the hymen
five months or so aftér the alleged assault?

A vNo.

Q Immediately after a sexual assault, is it
common there be a lot of blood?

A It depends on the -- the degree of violence,

the physicality of the‘assault; There—are, you know, a
lot of perpetrators who are well known to the victim and
aren't as physically-assaulting during the act of
penetration, and then there are other instances when
it's much more aggressive. So, you know, that's anothér
myth. People think that every time.- a woman who is a
virgin has. sex, that there is going to be blood
afterwards. It just depends on whether that hymen did
tear. And, certainly, the hymen can tear. And for
women who are highly -- are sexually experienced, many
of them will have a visible, what we call transection,
or a tear in the hymen, that will then heal. So when
they go to the gynecologist, or they come to me, I can
see that there is that -- fhat tear in the hymen that is
healed. But, again, that is not something that is -- 'is
seen in sexuélly active women as a definite, and that's
why you can't tell. |

MS. CONCANNON: Beg the Court's indulgence?
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THE COURT: Yes, ma'am.

(Ms. Concannon speaks with Mr. Shelton off the

record.)

Q (By Ms. Concannon) Did you conduct a physical
examination on Minor ?

A I did.

Q When was this physical examination conducted?

A In August of 2012, I believe it was.

Q What were your findings of that exam?

A There were no findings on her- exam.

Q When you say there are no findings, what does

that indicate? -

A Well, first of all, the hymen had no
disruptions in it. So there were no tears or notches or
clefts in the hymen. I saw no visible signs of an STD.
Unfortunately, her caretaker did not follow through on
taking her to the lab to have the STD testing done. So

I don't know for sure whether there was or was not any

infection there. So that's the reason for no findings
there.
Q And, again, you said this was in August of last

year, the exam?
A Yes.
MS. CONCANNON: I have no further questions for

this witness.
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1 MS. CAMPBELL: Thank you.
2 CROSS-EXAMINATION
3 BY MS. CAMPBELL:
4 Q - Kristin --
5 A Yes.
6 Q -- did you provide the state of South Carolina
7 with an article from the Official Journal of the
8 American Academy of Pediatrics that you rely on?
9 A . Yes. ' It's one of the many that I rely on.
10 Q Okay.. Well, this is what the Statebgave me

11 that you were relying on in relation to your testimony
12 todéy. Okay? And this Official Jou;nal of the American
B 13 Academy of Pediatrics, which is many, many pages long,
14 you've read this;‘riéht? '

15 A Yés, I have.

16 o] Okay. And you'fe very familiar with what this
17 article says, aren't. you? '

18 A I'm -- yes, I am familiar with what that

19 article says. |

20 Q Okay. And you used the criteria in this

21 article in your physical examination of Minor ;
22 right? |

23 A What do you'meanvby using the criteria?
24 Q I mean, you took your knowledge, your

25 information, your expertise that founds itself, that
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rests itself on reports just like this, and you used
that in your phyéical examination of Minor ; right?
A That was one of many, yes.
Q Okay. Well, the only one the State gave me
is this one. And you admit to relying on this one;
correct?
A It's part of the myriad of studies I use. Yes,
that is correct.
MS. CAMPBELL: May I approéch, your Honor?
THE COURT: You may.

(Document is handed toc the witness.)

Q (By Ms. Campbell) If you would, please, would -

you read for the jury the title of this article.
A Genital Anatomy in Pregnant Adolescents.

Normal Does Not Mean Nothing Happened.

Q Thank you. May I have it back, please?

A Sure.

0 Minor is not pregnant in August 2012, is
she?

A No, she wasn't.

Q Okay. Now, in this physical examination you

did of her, you say you looked at her hymen; right?
A Yes.
Q And when you did that, you're following

a 13-page treatment protocol; right?
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A ,Foilowing the protoéol? .

Q. Yes. You have a .13-page child treatment
protocol?

| A That's the form that I fill out, yes, for after
the  exam. »

Q Okay.

A That's the information that I need to provide
to the State.

Q Right.: Okay; And in that 13-page tréatment
protocol, you note that Minor ~ is - been the wvictim
of or exposed to multiple occasions of domestic
violence; correct?

A I did note that, yes.

) Okay. Which are not at all related to
Gerald Barrett, Jr.; right?

A I don't know. if he was there for those -- I
didn't specifically ask who was;involved.in ﬁhose
instances. . .

Q So there's some information you don't know?

A I'm sure there's a tremendous amoﬁnt of
information I don't know about Minor ' life, if that's
what you're asking.

Q But, again, in the protocol, you're supposed to
answer thbse gquestions. And that's what you answered.

right here on page 3. . It says that she was exposed to a
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history of domestic violence between herself -- excuse
me -- the mother and the father and the ex-husband,

something to that effect.” Would you like to see it?

A Yes, I would like to, please.

0 Okay.

(Document is handed to the witness.)

A Okay. So I put _- I interviewed both Minor '
mother, Ms. Brandace Smith, and then I interviewed
Minor , to -- which is part of medical history. You
always take a social history, a behavioral history, a
past medical history, and a surgical history. So this
is part of the social history. And I obtained it from
both the victim and her mother. And the mother reports
-- and I quote myself, she, referring to Ms. Smith, the
mother, reports a history of domestic violence between
herself and her ex-husband, which was often witnessed by
Minor . She denies the family has ever been involved
with any law enforcement or DSS, Department of Social
Services, prior to this incident. There have been no
problems with substance abuse, alcohol, or illicit drug
use by any of Minor . ' caretakers. This, of course, is
important for the medical exam.

And then underneath that; I wrote, Minor has

lived with her mother most of her life. Mother married

when Minor was about one year. That marriage ended
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1 about three years ago, but stepfather is still involved.

2 Then at the bottom I put, when Minor  was interviewed

3 alone, she reported law enforcement had been involved

4 with the family on multiple occasions due to domestic

5 violence. Y

6 Q (By Ms. Campbell) Thank you. And so you'ﬁe

7 got two different versions: One from the mother, one

8  from Minori; right?

A Yes.

10 - Q About any inyolvement with law enforcement, but

11 both confirmed domestic violence; correct?’
12 A Correct.

13 0 Now, on page 4, your report reflects that Minor

.

14 reported that she was bleeding after she suffered this

15 sexual assault; correct?

16 A Yes. »
17 Q Okay. And on -- then again, on page 6, you say
18- that, Minor had been treated long before this'

19  allegation for mental health issues and for cutting

20 herself; correct?

21 A Yes.

22 - Q All right. And then you go on in the -- in
23 this‘protocol, and you say‘thaﬁ -- on page 8, that
24 the -- the hymen -- which, thank you for your

25 explanation of that to all of us -- was estrogenized,
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which if I may, would mean that she's postpuberty;
right? |

A It could mean that she's just begun puberty or
is towards the end. There's five stages of puberty. So
it just means that she's involved in that process.

Q The estrogenized?

A Estrogenized means that a child's body has

begun changing from that of a child to that of a woman

- 0Xr a man.

Q Right. And that you note on this page that the
hymen is smooth, continuous; correct?

A Yes.

Q Okay. And very clearly, on your protocol that
you have to follow, you<make the notations, no tears?

There are no tears; correct?

A Correct.

Q There are no lacerations?

A Correct.

Q There's no vaginal discharge?

A Correct.

0 There's no posterior hymenal transections;
correct?

A Correct.

@) There are no deep notches?

A There are no findings at all, no. Correct.
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There are no perforations?

A Perforations, I don't believe that's one of

w N

the -- I don't believe that's even -- should be on the
4 protocol. Perforatibn would imply a hole. The hymen

5 already has a hole in it.

6 Q Okay. How about.a deep cleft?
7 A I didn't see a deep cleft either.
8 Q Are you familiar in your studies with the term

9 perforation?
10 ' A I'm notAsure what you mean by that.
11 Q Okay. So the only person that has viewed Minor

12 Minor 1's hymen is you; right?

o 13 A I don't know. I'm -- I know that I viewed her.

14 I don't know what her'past gynecological history is.
15 Q Kristin, you took -- you took no photographs,v
16 correct, of the hymen? You preserved no evidence;

17 correct?

18 A There was no evidence. So I didn't see the
19 need to take a photograph.

20 Q Well, you study, in reports just like this,
21 photographs of the hymen; right?

22 A What do you mean, I study photographs of the
23 hymen? You mean when I go to medical conferences or
24 read journal articles?ﬂ

25 Q Kristin, you said you're familiar with this
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report; correct? You provided it to the State?
A Right.
0 Okay. And in this report that you rely on,

there are photographs of the hymen -- of different
hymens that you learn from and you look at and you say,
okay, this is a certain type of hymen, and this is
another type of hymen; correct?

A ‘Uh-huh.

Q Yes?

A Yes.

Q Okay. And so in this case, for us today, there
is no preservation of any evidence. There's no

photograph of the hymen that's at issue in this case;

.correct?
A I did not photograph her hymen. What I'm
—— I'm sorry if I'm misunderstanding you. But what my

point 1is, there wasn't what I considered to be evidence.
There were no -- there was no unusual findings. So I

did not photograph that.

Q Right. And you -- you made that decision;
correct?l

A Correct.

Q Okay.‘ And so because you didn't find anything,

you didn't preserve any evidence for us; correct?

A I didn't preserve evidence of a normal exam for
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you, that is correct.
Q You didn't order any kind of imaging studies at
all on this -- this case; right?
A There are no imaging studies that you can order

on a hymen.

Q You work for Hope Haven; correct?

A Yes. That's our child advocacy center.

Q Correct. And you testify for the State; right?
A Correct.

Q Okay. You don't testify in defense of any man

that's charged with these crimes; correct?

A No. I have testified in defense.
Q And you didn't preserve any evidence; correct?
A There was no evidence to preserve, and I did

not photograph the exam. I'm not understanding what

you're asking me. I'm sorry.

0 I'll move on.
A I did not photograph a normal exam. I did not
feel there was evidence -- may I say that? -- and so I

did not feel the need to photograph.

Q You testified’at the very beginning of your
testimony about this thing that, you know, -in a day or
two, you don't have any DNA evidence you can get; right?

A Correct.

Q Okay. You're not a DNA expert?
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A No, I'm not.
0 But what you do know, is when you do a physical

exam on someone that's made an allegation of sexual
assault, that you can find DNA; correct?

A If -- if it's been 12 to 24 hours after the
assault, ~that is the time that the scientists and the

DNA experts tell us —-

Q Right.

A -~ no longer try after that period of time.
Q On her body; right?

A Pardon me?

0 On the body; correct?

A Correct.

Q Okay.

A And then you have a little bit longer on

fomites, like sheets and towels and panties and that
kind of thing. |
Q- Correct. And if you had the opbortunity, you
would take these items into evidence, wouldn't you?
A In the acute cases, I do, yes.
MS. CAMPBELL: Okay. Thank you. I may be
finished, your Honor. Just one more sécond.
(Respite.)
Q (By Ms. Campbell) Kristin, you're not an

Ob-Gyn doctor; Right?
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A No, ma'am.

Q And you're not a surgeon; right?

A No.

Q Okay. And just so we're clear, again, there

were no findings -- under this nothing does not mean
happened in adolescence genital anatomy report that you
relied on relating to pregnant adolescents; right?

A Well, two of the 36 victims in that report had
findings. The reason they used pregnant girls was they
wanted to have a way to prove that girls had been
sexually active, aﬁd tﬁat's about the only way you can
prove. So in that study, 36 pregnant adolescents, who
we can all accept had been sexually active, were
examined by experts, and two of those 36 females had
findings of vaginal penetration.

0 Okay. Again, this is the report that you
relied on, the pregnant one?

A That is one of the reports that I rely on.
Yes, it is.
MS. CAMPBELL: Thank you. I have nothing else.
MS. CONCANNON: Thank you, your Honor. Just -
very briefly. |
REDIRECT EXAMINATIOﬁ
BY MS. CONCANNON:

Q If there's -- if one of the -- if the child
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that you are examining indicates that blood was present,
does that necessarily indicate that the hymen was torn?

A Not at all. 1It's very different in cases of
sexual assault. The big difference betweén sexual
assault and consensual sex is the arousal factor. 1In
consensual sex, when a female is aroused, her body
produces a lubricant that makes the whole process a lot
easier. If there's no arousal, there's no lubricant.
And there are spots that -- areas of the hymen -- or
it's actually in front of the hymen, where in most cases
of sexual assault where there is trauma, it's not really
seen on the hymen. It's seen in the posterior
fourchette, which is -- I describe it as thinking of a
doormat in front of a door. That's what the posterior
fourchette is.

So in cases of assault, if there is no
lubricant, the friction tends to cause injury in that
area. If you're looking at a clock, it's like at
six o'clock. And that's cften -- if I do an acute case
where there's been, you know, an assault, and I've seen
the child right afterwards, that is often an area where
I will see bleeding.

Q All right. You wrote a report after your
examination of Minor ; didn't you?

A Yes.
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0 Did this report include your findings of the
exam?
A It did.
Q If you're examining a child and there's no

evidence of trauma or you state there's no evidence at
all, would you typically take pictures of that?

A No. |

‘MS. CONCANNON: i have no further questions.

MS. CAMPBELL: Just‘bfiefly, your Honor.

RECROSS-EXAMTINATION
BY MS. CAMPBELL: ‘

Q Kristin, on page 5 of‘your_report,_you made a
notation in your pertinent medical history that, in
fact, Minor had an Ob-Gyn doctor on Hilton Head; correct?

A Yes.

Q And that that Ob-Gyn doctor probably around, I
guess, March or April had started prescribing Minor birth
control pills; correct?

A Correct.

MS. CAMPBELL: Okay. That's all I have.

THE COURT: .  Ladies and gentlemen, we've reached
an appropriate time for us to take our lunch break. Do
not begin your deliberations. Do not discuss this case
amongst yourselves. Please take your notepads with you.

We will'lock them up during your lunch break. Please be
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‘back in your jury room at 1:45. We will begin promptly
once all 14 of you are there.

Please stay seated.

Please rise for the jury.

{The”jury is escorted from the courtroom
at 12:35 p.m.)

THE COURT: Thank you. Please be seated.

You may step down. Thank you.

THE WITNESS: Thank you.

THE COURT: You are free to go.

Do you have any additional witnesses?

MS. 'CONCANNON: I will have Investigator Adams
briefly, and that is my last witness.

- THE COURT: All right. I'm going to advise
your client of his right to testify. And we'll get to
that today.

MS. CAMPBELL: Would you like us to stand?

THE COURT: Yes, please.

MS. CAMPBELL: Thank you.

THE COURT: Mr. Barrett, I'm going to place you
under oath. Please swear Mr. Barrett.

(The oath is administered by the Deputy Clerk
of Court, and the Defendant answered as follows:)

THE DEFENDANT: I do.

THE DEPUTY CLERK OF COURT: Thank you.
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THE COURT: All right. Mr. Barrett, at this

" time, I'm going to explain to .you certain of your

rights. If you do not understand anything that I say,

please let me know. And if you need me to explain

anything 'in further detail, please lét me know. Do you
understand?
THE DEFENDANT: Yes, ma'am.

THE COURT: We are very close to the stage of

the trial where you may present your defense. You have

- the right to claim the protections given to you by the.

Fifth Amendment to the Constitution of the United .
States. This amendﬁent states in part that no person
shall be compelled in any criminal case to be a witness
against himself. This means that you cannot be required
to testify in this case. You have the right to testify
on your own behalf; however, no.one cén make you o
testify. This is a personal right, and no one can waive
this right except for you.

If you decide to testify, .you will be subject
to the same rules that govern»othér'witnesses, and you
may be examined and cross-examined on any relevant issue
in this case. 1In addition, if you have any convictions
involving dishonesty, or false statements, or for crimes
punishable by imprisonment for more than one year, and I

determine that the probative value of admitting the
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evidence outweighs its prejudicial affect to you, the
Solicitor will be able to introduce your record to
attack your credibility.

Any convictions?

MS. CONCANNON: Yes, your Honor. He has
contributing to the delinquency of a minor, which was
noted earlier. He also has a financial transaction card
fraud, burglary second degree.

THE COURT: If you decide to testify, this

~decision on your part must be freely, voluntarily, and

intelligently made, with the knowledge of the

protections given to you by the Fifth Amendment and the

*consequences of your decision to testify. If you decide

not to testify, i will instruct the jurors that they
cannot give the fact that you did nbt testify any
consideration whatsoever, and there is to be absolutely
no prejudice to you because you did not testify.

It is left entirely up to you whether or not
you testify. You may talk to your friends, your family,
your attorney or anyone else, but the final decision
will be left enﬁirély up to you. Do you know understand
what I've exXplained to you? |

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, ma'am.

THE COURT: Do you have any quéstions about

what I've explained to you?

7
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THE DEFENDANT: No, ma'am.

THE COURT: Have you discussed with your
attorney previously whether or not you will testify?

THE DEFENDANT: No, ma'am.. Not.at this'time.

THE COURT: You have not previously discussed
your attorney your ;—vwhether or not you will testify?

THE DEFENDANT: Not if I would sbeak on my own
behalf, no, ma'am, but to the case, yes. |

THE COURT: All right. When the appropriate
time comes, my question will be to you, do you wish to
testify? But you will have over the lunch hour to make
that -decision.

All right. Anything.before we take our lunch
break? ' |

MS. CONCANNON: Not from the State, your Honor.

MS. CAMPBELL: No, ma'am. 1

THE COURT: If you will let me know, if you
will tell whomevér I need to speak with about the rest
of the week, so that we can plan accordingly. Thank
you. |

(A lunch_reéeés is taken from 12:39 p.m.
until 1:43 p.m.) | ‘

MS. CONCANNON: Mr. Shelton is in another
courtroom handling other cases. I think he won't be

present for the rest of the afternoon. My apologies.
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THE COURT: Let's bring in the jury.

THE BAILIFF: The jury is ready.

THE COURT: Thank you.

{(The jury is escorted into the courtroom
at 1:48 p.m.)

THE COURT: Thank yoﬁ. Be seated. Call your
next witness.

MS. CONCANNON: Thank you, your Honor. State
calls Investigator John Adams.

THE DEPUTY CLERK OF COURT: Place your left
hand on the Bible, raise your right hand for me, please.

(The oath is administered by the Deputy Clerk
of Court, and the witness answers as follows:)

THE WITNESS: I do.

THE DEPUTY CLERK OF COURT: Please be
seated. State your name and spell it for the Court,
please.

THE WITNESS: My name is John Adams. I'm an
investigator With the Beaufort County Sheriff's Office.
My last name is A-d-a-m-s.

JOHN ADAMS,
having been first duly sworn by the Deputy Clerk of
Court to tell the truth, the whole truth, and nothing
but the truth, was examined and testified upon his oath

as follows:
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_DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MS. CONCANNON:
Q You mentioned you're with the Beaufort County

Sheriff's Office. In what capacity are you with the

Sheriff's Office?

A I'm an investigator with the Sheriff's Office.

Q And as an investigator, what are somé of your
duties?

A I investigate cases, collecting evidence,

interviewing witnesses, things of that nature.
Q Okay. Were you involved in the investigation
of this current case we have been discussing the past

two days?

A Yes, ma'am, I was.
Q Okay. Were you the lead investigator on this
case? |

A I was.

0 Do you know.who Minor , . is?

A I do.

o) Who is Minor ?
A Minor is the victim in this case. It

was reported on July'the 3rd of 2012, by Minor !
grandmother, Mary, that she had been sexually assaulted
at the residence of her mother's house, and where her

mom lived with her boyfriend, at Forest Drive
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in Bluffton, Beaufort County, South Carolina.

o} How old was Minor  ?

A At the time of the incident, she was 14.

Q Do you know how old she is now?

A I believe she's 15.

o) Who was Minor living with at that residence?
A At that residence, she was living with her

mother's boyfriend, Shawn Ward, and her mother, Brandace

Smith.
Q Do you know who she lives with today?
A I believe she lives with her father,

Tyreed Lucas, on Hilton Head Island.

Q Was there anybody else living with Minor
at that house with her mother and her mother's
ex-boyfriend?

A I know that sometimes her half-sisters or
stepsisters would live with them .there off and on.

Q You said off and on. -Where would they live
when they weren't there?

A When they weren't there, they would live with
their father, Michael Gray, at another residence in
Bluffton:.

0 Okay. So Minor ' stepsister -- or
half-sisters, they share the same mother?

A Correct.
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Q Okay.
A These —-- the sisters that you describe share

the same mother.
Q Okay. Thank you.

In your investigation of this incident, what

were some of your duties specifically?
A Well, on July the 5th,'I made contact with

Minor- ' mother, Brahdace Smith, and afranged for hér
to have a forensic interview at Hope Haven of the
Lowcountry, the child's advocacy center in Bluffton.
And on the 20th of July in 2012, I went to that forensic
interview at Hope Haven of the Lowcountry, and I
observed that Minor , was brought to that interview
with her -- by both her mother and her father, the
mother, Brandace Smith, and the father, Tyreed Lucas.

I observed the forensic interview that took
place between interviéwer Kendra Twitty and Minor
via closed-circuit television, which was live and in
real time. And one of the things I observed about
Minor during the interview is that she was intelligent,
she was articulate, very soft-spoken. And as Kendra led
her towards the actual assault part of the story, she
became very withdrawn and silent and was unable to speak
about the -- the assault itself‘and actually had to

write down in a note what had occurred to her.
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Q Did Minor state the time and place the
incident occurred?
A She said that it happened a few days after

Saint Patrick's Day, a couple of days after Saint
Patrick's Day.

Q And where the incident happened?

A At ' Forest Drive, Bluffton, Beaufort
County, South Carolina, the residence of Minor ' mother
and her live-in boyfriend, Shawn Ward.

Q What else did you do in your investigation of
the case?

A I also met with Mr. Ward on March the 16th of
2013 at that residence, Forest Drive, at which
time I photographed the residence. And I realized thét
the house was consistent with the house that Minor had
described in her forensic interview. It was two
stories. And Mr. Ward indicated that she did, in fact,
stay in an upstairs bedroom.

Q Why did you wait almost a year after the

incident occurred -- or I guess it was -- came to your

attention in July and waited with until March to go

speak with Mr. Ward?

A Well, twofold. The -- well, I guess more than
twofold. I realized that neither Ms. Smith -- Brandace
Smith oxr Minor were living at the residence. And
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the delayed disclosure of tﬁis particular case would
have precluded me from collecting e&idence from the
scene that I could directly link to the actual assault
itself. And I also went, I.believe, at the request of
fhe assistant solicitor that was assigned to the case at

that time, Patrick Hall.

Q Did you speak with Mr. Ward?
A In reference to court preparation.
0 Had the disclosure been immediate at the time,

would you have gone to collect evidence from the
incident location?

A Yes, ma'am, we would have. Normally we do that
via search warrant, and we collect lots of forenéic
evidence, if it's available at the scene.

Q - Would forensic evidence have been available
five monthé-after the incident'héppened?

- A Not to my knowledge, ma'am.
MS. CONCANNON: I have no further questions for
this witness at this time.
MS. CAMPBELL: Thank you, your Honor.
CROSS-EXAMINATION
BY MS. CAMPBELL:

0 As the lead investigator in this case, Officer

Adams, you received the report from Deputy Sheriff

Glass; correct?
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A Yes, ma(am, I did.

Q Deputy Sheriff Glass is the officer who spoke
with the stepgrandmother, Mary; correct?

A Yes, ma'am.

Q And -- and you know Deputy Sheriff Glass is
trained, just as you are, to be accurate in his reports;
correct?

A I would assume so, ma'am. I'm not -- I don't
know exactly what the training is that Deputy Glass had,

but I would assume that that is correct.

Q Now, Officer Adams, you relied on this report:;
right?
A I relied on it}for the location, the people

involved, and the contact information, to make contact
with those peoplé.

Q Okay. So, yes, you relied on Deputy Sheriff
Glass' report?

A "Yes, ma'am.

0 And in that report, it'é very clear that the
information you took from that report was that tﬁe
allegation related to one to two weeks before the end of

school; correct?

A I would have to go back and reread that. If

“you would like me to, I'd be happy to.

MS. CAMPBELL: May I approach?
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THE COURT: You may.
MS. CAMPBELL:. Thank you.
(Document is handed to the witness.)

Q (By Mé. Campbell) Do you have a copy of the
full report?

A Yes, ma'am; I do.

0 All right. Well, then, perhaps I could just
direct you.

A 1'd be happy to be directed.

Q On page 3 of 3. of Deputy Glass' report, dated
July 3rd, 2012, in the second paragraph, three sentences
down, Mary stated, Minor - advised the incident occurred
one to two weeks prior to the conclusion of school.

A It does say that in his report.

Q Okay. It also says in the report, that you
relied Qh in cbnducting your investigation, that this
allegation was leveled against Mr. Barrett, against
Gerald, while Mary was traveling from Bluffton to Aiken
with Minor , and that's when it took place; right?

A I'm not sure of the question, ma'am.

Q Okay. On page 3 of 3, Deputy Sheriff Glassv

reports that Mary advised that while she was traveling

- with Minor the allegation was made --
A Yes, ma'am.
0 -—- correct?
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Okay. ©Not when they got back to Aiken, not in

Bluffton, but while they were traveling, the allegation

was made?

A | That is wha£ it says in the report.

Q And the allegation was made on July -- well,
around the beginning of July; correct?

A Yes,‘ma'am.

Q Okay. Not spring break, but the beginning of

July?
A It was reported to Deputy Glass on July the 3rd
of 2012.
| Q All right. It was also reported to Deputy

Sheriff Glass, in information that you relied on, that
the original time of the assault was 1:00 a.m., not
5:00 a.m.; isn't that correct? Doesn't the report
reflect that?

Under the interview with Brandace Smith, Minor
told her the suspect came into her_room at 1:00 a.m. and
laid in the bed with hér; right?

A It does say that in the report, ma'am.'
Q Okay. And that the incident occﬁrred
March 1st; correct? Three lines down?
A It does say that in the report.
Q Okay. Officer Adams, you were trained here in

South Carolina at the Criminal Justice Academy?
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A Yes, ma'am.

0 .Okay. And you were trained to interview
witnesses? |

A Yes, I -have had,training in interviewing
witnesses.

0 And you were trained to interview victims of
crimes? | |

| A Yes, ma'am, I was.

Q And you were trained to interview suspects in
crimes; correct?

A That's correct, ma'am.

Q You were trained to properly secure evidence;
correct?

A Yes, ma'am.

o] That would include fingerprint evidence, that
would include DNA evidence; correct?

A Yes, ma'am.

Q ‘ That-Would include evidencendf,semen at a crime
scene; correct? | |

A Yes, ma'am.

Q Okay. And there's spécial procedufes that you

had to follow to collect that evidence; correct?
A Yes, ma'am. |
Q  Okay. And you know how to do that?

A I do.
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1 Q Okay. 1In fact, you regularly do that activity.
2 You process crime scenes?
'3 A Yes, ma'am, I do.
4 0 Okay. So would it be fair to say that you
5 might even be an expert in the processing Qf crime
6 scenes; correct?
7 A I would not consider myself to be an expert,
8 but I have done it before many times.
9 Q = And you're accurate; right?
10 A I try to be, yes, ma'am.
11 Q And thorough?
12 A I try to be thorough.
(”‘E | 13 Q Okay. And through your accurate and thorough
""" g 14 investigation, you learned that Minor had made

15 an allegation against Gerald Barrett that a sexual

16 assault occurred, not one to two weeks before the end

17 of school, but two days after Saint Patrick's Day, is

18 what you -- you got; right?

19 A Yes, ma'am, I learned that at the forensic

20 interviéw at Hope Haven.

21 Q And you took that information, and you went and
22 got arrest warrants for Mr. Barrett; right?

23 A Yes, ma'am, I did.

24 Q And in your arrest warrant, you stated March

25 19th was the day this happened; right-?
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A I did.

Q Okay. And to the best of. your knowledge, the

w N

solicitor's office took that information and got those

4 indictments; right?

5 ‘ A I believe that's correcﬁ, yes;'ma'am.'

6 Q But those aren't the first indictments they got

7 in this case, are they? They're the second set of

8 indictﬁents; right?

9 A I believe the first set of indictments were for
10 the date of March the 19th, but the second Set were for
11 the other date. |
12 Q. Right. The second set of indictments they
"v 13 got extended the date all the way back to March 1lth;

14 vcorrect? ‘

15 A I believe‘that}s»correcf, yes, ma'am.

16 Q And Assistant Solicitor Patrick Hall talked to
17 you aboutlthe,reason they needed to move the date back
18 to March 1lth; correct?

19 A A He ﬁid tell me that»they were unsure of the
20 dates, and that I needed to follow up on —--—

21 Q  And the- solicitor also had informed yéu that
22 Mr. Barrett had served notice of an alibi defense,

23 correct, for March 19th; right?

24 A That's correct.

25 Q ~ And so he sent.ybu out, after he was made aware
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that Mr. Barrett had an alibi for the date of March

19th, to talk to Shawn Ward; correct?

A That's correct.
Q Okay. And to get Shawn Ward to make .a
statement -- or to receive a statement, I suppose, from

Shawn Ward, that would move the date of the alleged
assault all the way back to the Saint Patrick's Day
Parade on Hilton Head; right?

A He did not instruct me as to what date to get

it for. The date problem, I guess, for lack of a better

term, is primarily my fault. Because when I watched the

Hope Haven interview of Minor she said that the
assault had occurred a couple of days after Saint
Patrick's Day, which I assumed to be March the 17th,
when Saint Patrick's Day actually was in 2012. And
after speaking with Mr. Ward, I realized that she was
probably referring to the actual Hilton Head Island

Saint Patrick's Day Parade, which during 2012 was not

celebrated on the same day as traditional Saint

Patrick's Day. That Saint Patrick's Day Parade was

March the 1llth.

Q And this light bulb didn't go off, you know,
over your head until you had been informed that
Mr. Barrett had an alibi for March 19th; correct? None

\

of that took place until you knew about the alibi from
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the assistant solicitor; right?
A Ma'am, I did not realize that I had made a

mistake in assuming that the child was referring to
traditional Saint Patrick's Day until that time.

Q Now, you also received information through your
investigation -- and this is not in March 2013. This is
back in the summer of 2012. Just two -- maybe even a
month after the alleged sexual assault, if you take the
date being the end of school, that -- that a -- a
violent sexual assault, where there was blood and sémen,
had taken place at Shawn Ward's house, in the bed there, -
and you never went to the scene. You never looked at
the bed at all; correct? |

A That's correct.

Q Okay. Now, isn't it true, Officer Adams, that
the Beaufort County Sheriff's Department has what could
be considered a state-of-the-art DNA processing lab
right here in Beaufort County?

A  Yes, ma'am, they do have a DNA lab here.

Q Tim French runs that program, -and it is -- it
is stellar. It's certified. It is good to go; right?

A Yes, ma'am.

0 All right. And that DNA lab could take samples
from a crime scene, like a mattress, where there's

semen, stains, and analyze it to determine where that
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came from, couldn't they?
A They could, yes, ma'am.
o) But the reason %hey can't do that in this case

is because we don't have any such samples in this case;

correct?
A That is correct. We do not have those samples.
Q - And that's because you didn't go to the scene,

and you didn't take those samples; correct?

A I did not take those samples because of the
length of fime of the disclosure>

Q I understand what you're saying, but you didn't
go, and you didn't take them; correct?

A I did not take any samples.

Q And even in March 2013, when you did go to the
scene, armed with your camera, to take the photographs,
you didn't take any samples; correct?

A That is correct.

Q Okay. So the bed that you photographed,
upstaifs at Shawn Ward's house, did you think that was
the bed that the assault had happened in?

A The reason why the bed is in the photograph
is because I took general overview photos of the entire
house. I did not believe that that was the actual
bed.

Q Why not?
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A Because Brandace Smith and her children had not
lived there in quite some time.
Q But you don't know that for sure; right?
A That's correct.
Q And you're an investigator; right?
A I am.

Q And you might should have asked that question,
shouldn't you?

A I should have.

Q Okay. The answer to that quesfion, and the
stains on that bed, might actually contain the.
information that would say there is no stain on that
?ed; there is no semen on that bed; right?

A I believe Mr. Ward testified earlier that it
was not the same bedé

Q That he had disposed of the bed where the
alleged sexual assault took place; right? He had gotten
rid of it~z

A It wasn't the same bed. That's what I recall.

Q And did he tell you that on the day you were
there taking the photographs?

A I don't recall him telling me that.

Q One of the critical pieces of information that
you were able to get from Mr. Ward, when you went to

talk to him in March of 2013, it seems pretty clear from
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your report, ‘and his statement, is that on the night of

the Saint Patrick's Day Parade from Hilton Head, he and

Brandace got home after Minor got home; right?
A May I refresh my memory?
Q Sure.
(Respite.)

(The witness reviews documents.)
A What I recall from memory, ma'am, is that they
rode separately.

Q Would it be -- would you like to see a copy of

"his statement?

A Yes, ma'am, I would. .

Q Okay. Let me -- let me provide that to you;
MS. CAMPBELL: May I approach?
THE COURT: 'You.may.

Q {By Ms. Campbell) Officer Adams, I have
highlighted the sentence that I'm referring to. If you
couid read that for the jury, please.

A It;s: Someone took the girls back to the
house. We followed a